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INDEX TO APPELLANTS' APPENDIX 

DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION LOCATION 

Complaint (filed 12/17/2013) Vol. 1, 1–17 

Declaration of Salvatore Morabito in Support of Snowshoe 
Capital’s Motion to Dismiss for Lack of Personal 
Jurisdiction (filed 05/12/2014) 

Vol. 1, 18–21 

Defendant Snowshoe Petroleum, Inc.’s Motion to Dismiss 
Complaint for Lack of Personal Jurisdiction NRCP 12(b)(2) 
(filed 05/12/2014) 

Vol. 1, 22–30 

JH, Inc., Jerry Herbst, and Berry Hinckley Industries 
Opposition to Motion to Dismiss (filed 05/29/2014) 

Vol. 1, 31–43 

Exhibits to Opposition to Motion to Dismiss 

Exhibit Document Description 

1 Affidavit of John P. Desmond (filed 05/29/2014) Vol. 1, 44–48 

2 Fifth Amendment and Restatement of the Trust 
Agreement for the Arcadia Living Trust (dated 
09/30/2010) 

Vol. 1, 49–88 

3 Unanimous Written Consent of the Directors and 
Shareholders of CWC (dated 09/28/2010) 

Vol. 1, 89–92 

4 Unanimous Written Consent of the Board of 
Directors and Sole Shareholder of Superpumper 
(dated 09/28/2010) 

Vol. 1, 93–102 

5 Plan of Merger of Consolidated Western 
Corporation with and into Superpumper, Inc. 
(dated 09/28/2010) 

Vol. 1, 103–107 
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION 

 

LOCATION 

6 Articles of Merger of Consolidated Western 
Corporation with and into Superpumper, Inc. 
(dated 09/29/2010) 

Vol. 1, 108–110 

7 2009 Federal Income Tax Return for P. Morabito Vol. 1, 111–153 

8 May 21, 2014 printout from New York Secretary 
of State 

Vol. 1, 154–156 

9 May 9, 2008 Letter from Garrett Gordon to John 
Desmond 

Vol. 1, 157–158 

10 Shareholder Interest Purchase Agreement (dated 
09/30/2010) 

Vol. 1, 159–164 

11 Relevant portions of the January 22, 2010 
Deposition of Edward Bayuk 

Vol. 1, 165–176 

13 Relevant portions of the January 11, 2010 
Deposition of Salvatore Morabito 

Vol. 1, 177–180 

14 October 1, 2010 Grant, Bargain and Sale Deed Vol. 1, 181–187 

15 Order admitting Dennis Vacco (filed 02/16/2011) Vol. 1, 188–190 

JH, Inc., Jerry Herbst, and Berry Hinckley Industries, Errata 
to Opposition to Motion to Dismiss (filed 05/30/2014) 

Vol. 2, 191–194 

Exhibit to Errata to Opposition to Motion to Dismiss  

Exhibit Document Description  

12 Grant, Bargain and Sale Deed for APN: 040-620-
09, dated November 10, 2005 

Vol. 2, 195–198 

Answer to Complaint of P. Morabito, individually and as 
trustee of the Arcadia Living Trust (filed 06/02/2014) 

Vol. 2, 199–208 
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LOCATION 

Defendant, Snowshow Petroleum, Inc.’s Reply in Support 
of Motion to Dismiss Complaint for Lack of Personal 
Jurisdiction NRCP 12(b)(2) (filed 06/06/2014) 

Vol. 2, 209–216 

Exhibit to Reply in Support of Motion to Dismiss 
Complaint for Lack of Personal Jurisdiction NRCP 
12(b)(2) 

 

Exhibit Document Description  

1 Declaration of Salvatore Morabito in Support of 
Snowshow Petroleum, Inc.’s Reply in Support of 
Motion to Dismiss Complaint for Lack of 
Personal Jurisdiction (filed 06/06/2014) 

Vol. 2, 217–219 

Defendant, Superpumper, Inc.’s Motion to Dismiss 
Complaint for Lack of Personal Jurisdiction NRCP 12(b)(2) 
(filed 06/19/2014) 

Vol. 2, 220–231 

Exhibit to Motion to Dismiss Complaint for Lack of 
Personal Jurisdiction NRCP 12(b)(2) 

 

Exhibit Document Description  

1 Declaration of Salvatore Morabito in Support of 
Superpumper, Inc.’s Motion to Dismiss for Lack 
of Personal Jurisdiction (filed 06/19/2014) 

Vol. 2, 232–234 

JH, Inc., Jerry Herbst, and Berry Hinckley Industries, 
Opposition to Motion to Dismiss (filed 07/07/2014) 

Vol. 2, 235–247 

Exhibits to Opposition to Motion to Dismiss  

Exhibit Document Description  

1 Affidavit of Brian R. Irvine (filed 07/07/2014) Vol. 2, 248–252 
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LOCATION 

2 Fifth Amendment and Restatement of the Trust 
Agreement for the Arcadia Living Trust (dated 
09/30/2010) 

Vol. 2, 253–292 

3 BHI Electronic Funds Transfers, January 1, 2006 
to December 31, 2006 

Vol. 2, 293–294 

4 Legal and accounting fees paid by BHI on behalf 
of Superpumper; JH78636-JH78639; JH78653-
JH78662; JH78703-JH78719 

Vol. 2, 295–328 

5 Unanimous Written Consent of the Directors and 
Shareholders of CWC (dated 09/28/2010) 

Vol. 2, 329–332 

6 Unanimous Written Consent of the Board of 
Directors and Sole Shareholders of Superpumper 
(dated 09/28/2010) 

Vol. 2, 333–336 

7 Plan of Merger of Consolidated Western 
Corporation with and into Superpumper, Inc. 
(dated 09/28/2010) 

Vol. 2, 337–341 

8 Articles of Merger of Consolidated Western 
Corporation with and into Superpumper, Inc. 
(dated 09/29/2010) 

Vol. 2, 342–344 

9 2009 Federal Income Tax Return for P. Morabito Vol. 2, 345–388 

10 Relevant portions of the January 22, 2010 
Deposition of Edward Bayuk 

Vol. 2, 389–400 

11 Grant, Bargain and Sale Deed for APN: 040-620-
09, dated November 10, 2005 

Vol. 2, 401–404 

12 Relevant portions of the January 11, 2010 
Deposition of Salvatore Morabito 

Vol. 2, 405–408 
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION 

 

LOCATION 

13 Printout of Arizona Corporation Commission 
corporate listing for Superpumper, Inc.  

Vol. 2, 409–414 

Defendant, Superpumper, Inc.’s Reply in Support of 
Motion to Dismiss Complaint for Lack of Personal 
Jurisdiction NRCP 12(b)(2) (filed 07/15/2014) 

Vol. 3, 415–421 

Order Denying Motion to Dismiss as to Snowshoe 
Petroleum, Inc.’s (filed 07/17/2014) 

Vol. 3, 422–431 

Notice of Entry of Order Denying Motion to Dismiss as to 
Snowshoe Petroleum, Inc.’s (filed 07/17/2014) 

Vol. 3, 432–435 

Exhibit to Notice of Entry of Order Denying Motion to 
Dismiss as to Snowshoe Petroleum, Inc.’s 

 

Exhibit Document Description  

1 Order Denying Motion to Dismiss as to Snowshoe 
Petroleum, Inc.’s 

Vol. 3, 436–446 

Order Denying Superpumper, Inc.’s Motion to Dismiss 
Complaint for Lack of Personal Jurisdiction NRCP 12(b)(2) 
(filed 07/22/2014) 

Vol. 3, 447–457 

Notice of Entry of Order Denying Superpumper, Inc.’s 
Motion to Dismiss Complaint for Lack of Personal 
Jurisdiction NRCP 12(b)(2) (filed 07/22/2014) 

Vol. 3, 458–461 

Exhibit to Notice of Entry of Order Denying 
Superpumper, Inc.’s Motion to Dismiss Complaint 

 

Exhibit Document Description  

1 Order Denying Superpumper, Inc.’s Motion to 
Dismiss Complaint for Lack of Personal 
Jurisdiction NRCP 12(b)(2) (filed 07/22/2014) 

Vol. 3, 462–473 
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LOCATION 

Answer to Complaint of Superpumper, Inc., and Snowshoe 
Petroleum, Inc. (filed 07/28/2014) 

Vol. 3, 474–483 

Answer to Complaint of Defendants, Edward Bayuk, 
individually and as trustee of the Edward William Bayuk 
Living Trust, and Salvatore Morabito (filed 09/29/2014) 

Vol. 3, 484–494 

Notice of Bankruptcy of Consolidated Nevada Corporation 
and P. Morabito (filed 2/11/2015) 

Vol. 3, 495–498 

Supplemental Notice of Bankruptcy of Consolidated 
Nevada Corporation and P. Morabito (filed 02/17/2015) 

Vol. 3, 499–502 

Exhibits to Supplemental Notice of Bankruptcy of 
Consolidated Nevada Corporation and P. Morabito 

 

Exhibit Document Description  

1 Involuntary Petition; Case No. BK-N-13-51236 
(filed 06/20/2013) 

Vol. 3, 503–534 

2 Involuntary Petition; Case No. BK-N-13-51237 
(06/20/2013) 

Vol. 3, 535–566 

3 Order for Relief Under Chapter 7; Case No. BK-
N-13-51236 (filed 12/17/2014) 

Vol. 3, 567–570 

4 Order for Relief Under Chapter 7; Case No. BK-
N-13-51237 (filed 12/17/2014) 

Vol. 3, 571–574 

Stipulation and Order to File Amended Complaint (filed 
05/15/2015) 

Vol. 4, 575–579 

Exhibit to Stipulation and Order to File Amended 
Complaint 

 

Exhibit Document Description  
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION 

 

LOCATION 

1 First Amended Complaint Vol. 4, 580–593 

William A. Leonard, Trustee for the Bankruptcy Estate of 
P. Morabito, First Amended Complaint (filed 05/15/2015) 

Vol. 4, 594–607 

Stipulation and Order to Substitute a Party Pursuant to 
NRCP 17(a) (filed 05/15/2015) 

Vol. 4, 608–611 

Substitution of Counsel (filed 05/26/2015) Vol. 4, 612–615 

Defendants’ Answer to First Amended Complaint (filed 
06/02/2015) 

Vol. 4, 616–623 

Amended Stipulation and Order to Substitute a Party 
Pursuant to NRCP 17(a) (filed 06/16/2015) 

Vol. 4, 624–627 

Motion to Partially Quash, or, in the Alternative, for a 
Protective Order Precluding Trustee from Seeking 
Discovery Protected by the Attorney-Client Privilege (filed 
03/10/2016) 

Vol. 4, 628–635 

Exhibits to Motion to Partially Quash, or, in the 
Alternative, for a Protective Order Precluding Trustee 
from Seeking Discovery Protected by the Attorney-
Client Privilege 

 

Exhibit Document Description  

1 March 9, 2016 Letter from Lippes Vol. 4, 636–638 

2 Affidavit of Frank C. Gilmore, Esq., (dated 
03/10/2016) 

Vol. 4, 639–641 

3 Notice of Issuance of Subpoena to Dennis 
Vacco (dated 01/29/2015) 

Vol. 4, 642–656 

4 March 10, 2016 email chain  Vol. 4, 657–659 
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION 

 

LOCATION 

Minutes of February 24, 2016 Pre-trial Conference (filed 
03/17/2016) 

Vol. 4, 660–661 

Transcript of February 24, 2016 Pre-trial Conference  Vol. 4, 662–725 

Plaintiff’s (Leonard) Opposition to Defendants’ Motion to 
Partially Quash, or, in the Alternative, for a Protective Order 
Precluding Trustee from Seeking Discovery Protected by 
the Attorney-Client Privilege (filed 03/25/2016) 

Vol. 5, 726–746 

Exhibits to Opposition to Motion to Partially Quash or, 
in the Alternative, for a Protective Order Precluding 
Trustee from Seeking Discovery Protected by the 
Attorney-Client Privilege 

 

Exhibit Document Description  

1 Declaration of Teresa M. Pilatowicz in Support 
of Plaintiff’s Opposition to Defendants’ Motion 
to Partially Quash (filed 03/25/2016) 

Vol. 5, 747–750 

2 Application for Commission to take Deposition 
of Dennis Vacco (filed 09/17/2015) 

Vol. 5, 751–759 

3 Commission to take Deposition of Dennis 
Vacco (filed 09/21/2015) 

Vol. 5, 760–763 

4 Subpoena/Subpoena Duces Tecum to Dennis 
Vacco (09/29/2015) 

Vol. 5, 764–776 

5 Notice of Issuance of Subpoena to Dennis 
Vacco (dated 09/29/2015) 

Vol. 5, 777–791 

6 Dennis C. Vacco and Lippes Mathias Wexler 
Friedman LLP, Response to Subpoena (dated 
10/15/2015)  

Vol. 5, 792–801 
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LOCATION 

7 Condensed Transcript of October 21, 2015 
Deposition of Dennis Vacco 

 Vol. 5, 802–851 

8 Transcript of the Bankruptcy Court’s December 
22, 2015, oral ruling; Case No. BK-N-13-51237 

Vol. 5, 852–897 

9 Order Granting Motion to Compel Responses to 
Deposition Questions; Case No. BK-N-13-
51237 (filed 02/03/2016) 

Vol. 5, 898–903 

10 Notice of Continued Deposition of Dennis 
Vacco (filed 02/18/2016) 

Vol. 5, 904–907 

11 Debtor’s Objection to Proposed Order Granting 
Motion to Compel Responses to Deposition 
Questions; Case No. BK-N-13-51237 (filed 
01/22/2016) 

Vol. 5, 908–925 

Reply in Support of Motion to Modify Subpoena, or, in the 
Alternative, for a Protective Order Precluding Trustee from 
Seeking Discovery Protected by the Attorney-Client 
Privilege (filed 04/06/2016) 

Vol. 6, 926–932 

Plaintiff’s Motion to Compel Production of Documents 
(filed 04/08/2016) 

Vol. 6, 933–944 

Exhibits to Plaintiff’s Motion to Compel Production of 
Documents 

 

Exhibit Document Description  

1 Declaration of Teresa M. Pilatowicz in Support 
of Plaintiff’s Motion to Compel (filed 
04/08/2016) 

Vol. 6, 945–948 

2 Bill of Sale – 1254 Mary Fleming Circle (dated 
10/01/2010) 

Vol. 6, 949–953 
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LOCATION 

3 Bill of Sale – 371 El Camino Del Mar (dated 
10/01/2010) 

Vol. 6, 954–958 

4 Bill of Sale – 370 Los Olivos (dated 
10/01/2010) 

Vol. 6, 959–963 

5 Personal financial statement of P. Morabito as 
of May 5, 2009 

Vol. 6, 964–965 

6 Plaintiff’s First Set of Requests for Production 
of Documents to Edward Bayuk (dated 
08/14/2015) 

Vol. 6, 966–977 

7 Edward Bayuk’s Responses to Plaintiff’s First 
Set of Requests for Production (dated 
09/23/2014) 

Vol. 6, 978–987 

8 Plaintiff’s First Set of Requests for Production 
of Documents to Edward Bayuk, as trustee of 
the Edward William Bayuk Living Trust (dated 
08/14/2015) 

Vol. 6, 988–997 

9 Edward Bayuk, as trustee of the Edward 
William Bayuk Living Trust’s Responses to 
Plaintiff’s First Set of Requests for Production 
(dated 09/23/2014) 

Vol. 6, 998–1007 

10 Plaintiff’s Second Set of Requests for 
Production of Documents to Edward Bayuk 
(dated 01/29/2016) 

Vol. 6, 1008–1015 

11 Edward Bayuk’s Responses to Plaintiff’s 
Second Set of Requests for Production (dated 
03/08/2016) 

Vol. 6, 1016–1020 
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LOCATION 

12 Plaintiff’s Second Set of Requests for 
Production of Documents to Edward Bayuk, as 
trustee of the Edward William Bayuk Living 
Trust (dated 01/29/2016) 

Vol. 6, 1021–1028 

13 Edward Bayuk, as trustee of the Edward 
William Bayuk Living Trust’s Responses to 
Plaintiff’s Second Set of Requests for 
Production (dated 03/08/2016) 

Vol. 6, 1029–1033 

14 Correspondences between Teresa M. Pilatowicz, 
Esq., and Frank Gilmore, Esq. (dated 
03/25/2016) 

Vol. 6, 1034–1037 

Opposition to Plaintiff’s Motion to Compel Production of 
Documents (filed 04/25/2016) 

Vol. 7, 1038–1044 

Reply in Support of Plaintiff’s Motion to Compel 
Production of Documents (filed 05/09/2016) 

Vol. 7, 1045–1057 

Exhibits to Reply in Support of Plaintiff’s Motion to 
Compel Production of Documents 

 

Exhibit Document Description  

1 Declaration of Gabrielle A. Hamm, Esq., in 
Support of Reply in Support of Plaintiff’s 
Motion to Compel (filed 05/09/2016) 

Vol. 7, 1058–1060 

2 Amended Findings, of Fact and Conclusion of 
Law in Support of Order Granting Motion for 
Summary Judgment; Case No. BK-N-13-51237 
(filed 12/22/2014) 

Vol. 7, 1061–1070 
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LOCATION 

3 Order Compelling Deposition of P. Morabito 
dated March 13, 2014, in Consolidated Nevada 
Corp., et al v. JH. et al.; Case No. CV07-02764 
(filed 03/13/2014) 

Vol. 7, 1071–1074 

4 Emergency Motion Under NRCP 27(e); Petition 
for Writ of Prohibition, P. Morabito v. The 
Second Judicial District Court of the State of 
Nevada in and for the County of Washoe; Case 
No. 65319 (filed 04/01/2014) 

Vol. 7, 1075–1104 

5 Order Denying Petition for Writ of Prohibition; 
Case No. 65319 (filed 04/18/2014) 

Vol. 7, 1105–1108 

6 Order Granting Summary Judgment; Case No. 
BK-N-13-51237 (filed 12/17/2014) 

Vol. 7, 1109–1112 

Recommendation for Order RE: Defendants’ Motion to 
Partially Quash, filed on March 10, 2016 (filed 06/13/2016) 

Vol. 7, 1113–1124 

Confirming Recommendation Order from June 13, 2016 
(filed 07/06/2016)  

Vol. 7, 1125–1126 

Recommendation for Order RE: Plaintiff’s Motion to 
Compel Production of Documents, filed on April 8, 2016 
(filed 09/01/2016) 

Vol. 7, 1127–1133 

Confirming Recommendation Order from September 1, 
2016 (filed 09/16/2016) 

Vol. 7, 1134–1135 

Plaintiff’s Application for Order to Show Cause Why 
Defendant, Edward Bayuk Should Not Be Held in 
Contempt of Court Order (filed 11/21/2016)  

 

Vol. 8, 1136–1145 
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LOCATION 

Exhibits to Plaintiff’s Application for Order to Show 
Cause Why Defendant, Edward Bayuk Should Not Be 
Held in Contempt of Court Order 

 

Exhibit Document Description  

1 Order to Show Cause Why Defendant, Edward 
Bayuk Should Not Be Held in Contempt of 
Court Order (filed 11/21/2016) 

Vol. 8, 1146–1148 

2 Confirming Recommendation Order from 
September 1, 2016 (filed 09/16/2016) 

Vol. 8, 1149–1151 

3 Recommendation for Order RE: Plaintiff’s 
Motion to Compel Production of Documents, 
filed on April 8, 2016 (filed 09/01/2016) 

Vol. 8, 1152–1159 

4 Plaintiff’s Motion to Compel Production of 
Documents (filed 04/08/2016) 

Vol. 8, 1160–1265 

5 Opposition to Plaintiff’s Motion to Compel 
Production of Documents (filed 04/25/2016) 

Vol. 8, 1266–1273 

6 Reply in Support of Plaintiff’s Motion to 
Compel Production of Documents (filed 
05/09/2016) 

Vol. 8, 1274–1342 

7 Correspondences between Teresa M. Pilatowicz, 
Esq., and Frank Gilmore, Esq. (dated 
09/22/2016) 

Vol. 8, 1343–1346 

8 Edward Bayuk’s Supplemental Responses to 
Plaintiff’s Second Set of Requests for 
Production (dated 10/25/2016) 

Vol. 8, 1347–1352 
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LOCATION 

Opposition to Plaintiff’s Application for Order to Show 
Cause Why Defendant Should Not Be Held in Contempt of 
Court Order (filed 12/19/2016 

Vol. 9, 1353–1363 

Exhibits to Opposition to Plaintiff’s Application for 
Order to Show Cause Why Defendant Should Not Be 
Held in Contempt of Court Order 

 

Exhibit Document Description  

1 Declaration of Edward Bayuk in Support of 
Opposition to Plaintiff’s Application for Order to 
Show Cause (filed 12/19/2016) 

Vol. 9, 1364–1367 

2 Declaration of Frank C. Gilmore, Esq., in Support 
of Opposition to Plaintiff’s Application for Order 
to Show Cause (filed 12/19/2016) 

Vol. 9, 1368–1370 

3 Redacted copy of the September 6, 2016, 
correspondence of Frank C. Gilmore, Esq.  

Vol. 9, 1371–1372 

Order to Show Cause Why Defendant, Edward Bayuk 
Should Not Be Held in Contempt of Court Order (filed 
12/23/2016) 

Vol. 9, 1373–1375 

Response: (1) to Opposition to Application for Order to 
Show Cause Why Defendant Should Not Be Held in 
Contempt of Court Order and (2) in Support of Order to 
Show Cause (filed 12/30/2016) 

Vol. 9, 1376–1387 

Minutes of January 19, 2017 Deposition of Edward Bayuk 
in RE: insurance policies (filed 01/19/2017) 

Vol. 9, 1388 

Minutes of January 19, 2017 hearing on Order to Show 
Cause (filed 01/30/2017) 

Vol. 9, 1389 
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LOCATION 

Motion to Quash Subpoena, or, in the Alternative, for a 
Protective Order Precluding Trustee from Seeking 
Discovery from Hodgson Russ LLP (filed 07/18/2017) 

Vol. 9, 1390–1404 

Exhibits to Motion to Quash Subpoena, or, in the 
Alternative, for a Protective Order Precluding Trustee 
from Seeking Discovery from Hodgson Russ LLP 

 

Exhibit Document Description  

1 Correspondence between Teresa M. Pilatowicz, 
Esq., and Frank Gilmore, Esq., dated March 8, 
2016 

Vol. 9, 1405–1406 

2 Correspondence between Teresa M. Pilatowicz, 
Esq., and Frank Gilmore, Esq., dated March 8, 
2016, with attached redlined discovery extension 
stipulation 

Vol. 9, 1407–1414 

3 Jan. 3 – Jan. 4, 2017, email chain from Teresa M. 
Pilatowicz, Esq., and Frank Gilmore, Esq. 

Vol. 9, 1415–1416 

4 Declaration of Frank C. Gilmore, Esq., in Support 
of Motion to Quash (filed 07/18/2017) 

Vol. 9, 1417–1420 

5 January 24, 2017 email from Teresa M. 
Pilatowicz, Esq.,  

Vol. 9, 1421–1422 

6 Jones Vargas letter to HR and P. Morabito, dated 
August 16, 2010 

Vol. 9, 1423–1425 

7 Excerpted Transcript of July 26, 2011 Deposition 
of Sujata Yalamanchili, Esq.  

Vol. 9, 1426–1431 

8 Letter dated June 17, 2011, from Hodgson Russ 
(“HR”) to John Desmond and Brian Irvine on 
Morabito related issues  

Vol. 9, 1432–1434 
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LOCATION 

9 August 9, 2013, transmitted letter to HR Vol. 9, 1435–1436 

10 Excerpted Transcript of July 23, 2014 Deposition 
of P. Morabito 

Vol. 9, 1437–1441 

11 Lippes Mathias Wexler Friedman LLP, April 3, 
2015 letter 

Vol. 9, 1442–1444 

12 Lippes Mathias Wexler Friedman LLP, October 
20, 2010 letter RE: Balance forward as of bill 
dated 09/19/2010 and 09/16/2010  

Vol. 9, 1445–1454 

13 Excerpted Transcript of June 25, 2015 Deposition 
of 341 Meeting of Creditors 

Vol. 9, 1455–1460 

(1) Opposition to Motion to Quash Subpoena, or, in the 
Alternative, for a Protective Order Precluding Trustee from 
Seeking Discovery from Hodgson Russ LLP; and                   
(2) Countermotion for Sanctions and to Compel Resetting 
of 30(b)(3) Deposition of Hodgson Russ LLP (filed 
07/24/2017) 

Vol. 10, 1461–1485 

Exhibits to (1) Opposition to Motion to Quash 
Subpoena, or, in the Alternative, for a Protective Order 
Precluding Trustee from Seeking Discovery from 
Hodgson Russ LLP; and (2) Countermotion for 
Sanctions and to Compel Resetting of 30(b)(3) 
Deposition of Hodgson Russ LLP 
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LOCATION 

Exhibit Document Description  

A Declaration of Teresa M. Pilatowicz, Esq., in 
Support of (1) Opposition to Motion to Quash 
Subpoena, or, in the Alternative, for a Protective 
Order Precluding Trustee from Seeking 
Discovery from Hodgson Russ LLP (filed 
07/24/2017) 

Vol. 10, 1486–1494 

A-1 Defendants’ NRCP Disclosure of Witnesses and 
Documents (dated 12/01/2014) 

Vol. 10, 1495–1598 

A-2 Order Granting Motion to Compel Responses to 
Deposition Questions; Case No. BK-N-13-51237 
(filed 02/03/2016) 

Vol. 10, 1599–1604 

A-3 Recommendation for Order RE: Defendants’ 
Motion to Partially Quash, filed on March 10, 
2016 (filed 06/13/2016) 

Vol. 10, 1605–1617 

A-4 Confirming Recommendation Order from 
September 1, 2016 (filed 09/16/2016) 

Vol. 10, 1618–1620 

A-5 Subpoena – Civil (dated 01/03/2017) Vol. 10, 1621–1634 

A-6 Notice of Deposition of Person Most 
Knowledgeable of Hodgson Russ LLP (filed 
01/03/2017) 

Vol. 10, 1635–1639 

A-7 January 25, 2017 Letter to Hodgson Russ LLP  Vol. 10, 1640–1649 

A-8 Stipulation Regarding Continued Discovery 
Dates (Sixth Request) (filed 01/30/2017) 

Vol. 10, 1650–1659 

A-9 Stipulation Regarding Continued Discovery 
Dates (Seventh Request) (filed 05/25/2017) 

Vol. 10, 1660–1669 
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LOCATION 

A-10 Defendants’ Sixteenth Supplement to NRCP 
Disclosure of Witnesses and Documents (dated 
05/03/2017) 

Vol. 10, 1670–1682 

A-11 Rough Draft Transcript of Garry M. Graber, 
Dated July 12, 2017 (Job Number 394849) 

Vol. 10, 1683–1719 

A-12 Sept. 15-Sept. 23, 2010 emails by and between 
Hodgson Russ LLP and Other Parties  

Vol. 10, 1720–1723 

Reply in Support of Motion to Quash Subpoena, or, in the 
Alternative, for a Protective Order Precluding Trustee from 
Seeking Discovery from Hodgson Russ LLP, and 
Opposition to Motion for Sanctions (filed 08/03/2017) 

Vol. 11, 1724–1734 

Reply in Support of Countermotion for Sanctions and to 
Compel Resetting of 30(b)(6) Deposition of Hodgson Russ 
LLP (filed 08/09/2017)  

Vol. 11, 1735–1740 

Minutes of August 10, 2017 hearing on Motion to Quash 
Subpoena, or, in the Alternative, for a Protective Order 
Precluding Trustee from Seeking Discovery from Hodgson 
Russ LLP, and Opposition to Motion for Sanctions (filed 
08/11/2017) 

Vol. 11, 1741–1742 

Recommendation for Order RE: Defendants’ Motion to 
Quash Subpoena, or, in the Alternative, for a Protective 
Order Precluding Trustee from Seeking Discovery from 
Hodgson Russ LLP, filed on July 18, 2017 (filed 
08/17/2017) 

Vol. 11, 1743–1753 

Motion for Partial Summary Judgment (filed 08/17/2017) Vol. 11, 1754–1796 

Statement of Undisputed Facts in Support of Motion for 
Partial Summary Judgment (filed 08/17/2017) 

Vol. 11, 1797–1825 
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LOCATION 

Exhibits to Statement of Undisputed Facts in Support of 
Motion for Partial Summary Judgment 

 

Exhibit Document Description  

1 Declaration of Timothy P. Herbst in Support of 
Separate Statement of Undisputed Facts in 
Support of Motion for Partial Summary Judgment 

Vol. 12, 1826–1829 
 

2 Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and 
Judgment in Consolidated Nevada Corp., et al v. 
JH. et al.; Case No. CV07-02764 (filed 
10/12/2010) 

Vol. 12, 1830–1846 

3 Judgment in Consolidated Nevada Corp., et al v. 
JH. et al.; Case No. CV07-02764 (filed 
08/23/2011) 

Vol. 12, 1847–1849 

4 Excerpted Transcript of July 12, 2017 Deposition 
of Garry M. Graber 

Vol. 12, 1850–1852 

5 September 15, 2015 email from Yalamanchili RE: 
Follow Up Thoughts  

Vol. 12, 1853–1854 

6 September 23, 2010 email between Garry M. 
Graber and P. Morabito  

Vol. 12, 1855–1857 

7 September 20, 2010 email between Yalamanchili 
and Eileen Crotty RE: Morabito Wire  

Vol. 12, 1858–1861 

8 September 20, 2010 email between Yalamanchili 
and Garry M. Graber RE: All Mortgage Balances 
as of 9/20/2010 

Vol. 12, 1862–1863 

9 September 20, 2010 email from Garry M. Graber 
RE: Call  

Vol. 12, 1864–1867 
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10 September 20, 2010 email from P. Morabito to 
Dennis and Yalamanchili RE: Attorney client 
privileged communication  

Vol. 12, 1868–1870 

11 September 20, 2010 email string RE: Attorney 
client privileged communication 

Vol. 12, 1871–1875 

12 Appraisal of Real Property: 370 Los Olivos, 
Laguna Beach, CA, as of Sept. 24, 2010 

Vol. 12, 1876–1903 

13 Excerpted Transcript of March 21, 2016 
Deposition of P. Morabito 

Vol. 12, 1904–1919 

14 P. Morabito Redacted Investment and Bank 
Report from Sept. 1 to Sept. 30, 2010 

Vol. 12, 1920–1922 

15 Excerpted Transcript of June 25, 2015 Deposition 
of 341 Meeting of Creditors 

Vol. 12, 1923–1927 

16 Excerpted Transcript of December 5, 2015 
Deposition of P. Morabito 

Vol. 12, 1928–1952 

17 Purchase and Sale Agreement between Arcadia 
Trust and Bayuk Trust entered effective as of 
Sept. 27, 2010 

Vol. 12, 1953–1961 

18 First Amendment to Purchase and Sale 
Agreement between Arcadia Trust and Bayuk 
Trust entered effective as of Sept. 28, 2010 

Vol. 12, 1962–1964 

19 Appraisal Report providing market value estimate 
of real property located at 8355 Panorama Drive, 
Reno, NV as of Dec. 7, 2011 

Vol. 12, 1965–1995 
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20 An Appraisal of a vacant .977± Acre Parcel of 
Industrial Land Located at 49 Clayton Place West 
of the Pyramid Highway (State Route 445) 
Sparks, Washoe County, Nevada and a single-
family residence located at 8355 Panorama Drive 
Reno, Washoe County, Nevada 89511 as of 
October 1, 2010 a retrospective date 

Vol. 13, 1996–2073 

21 APN: 040-620-09 Declaration of Value (dated 
12/31/2012) 

Vol. 14, 2074–2075 

22 Sellers Closing Statement for real property 
located at 8355 Panorama Drive, Reno, NV 89511 

Vol. 14, 2076–2077 

23 Bill of Sale for real property located at 8355 
Panorama Drive, Reno, NV 89511 

Vol. 14, 2078–2082 

24 Operating Agreement of Baruk Properties LLC Vol. 14, 2083–2093 

25 Edward Bayuk, as trustee of the Edward William 
Bayuk Living Trust’s Answer to Plaintiff’s First 
Set of Interrogatories (dated 09/14/2014) 

Vol. 14, 2094–2104 

26 Summary Appraisal Report of real property 
located at 1461 Glenneyre Street, Laguna Beach, 
CA 92651, as of Sept. 25, 2010 

Vol. 14, 2105–2155 

27 Appraisal of Real Property as of Sept. 23, 2010: 
1254 Mary Fleming Circle, Palm Springs, CA 
92262 

Vol. 15, 2156–2185 
 

28 Appraisal of Real Property as of Sept. 23, 2010: 
1254 Mary Fleming Circle, Palm Springs, CA 
92262 

Vol. 15, 2186–2216 
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29 Membership Interest Transfer Agreement 
between Arcadia Trust and Bayuk Trust entered 
effective as of Oct. 1, 2010 

Vol. 15, 2217–2224 
 

30 PROMISSORY NOTE [Edward William Bayuk 
Living Trust (“Borrower”) promises to pay 
Arcadia Living Trust (“Lender”) the principal 
sum of $1,617,050.00, plus applicable interest] 
(dated 10/01/2010) 

Vol. 15, 2225–2228 
 

31 Certificate of Merger dated Oct. 4, 2010 Vol. 15, 2229–2230 

32 Articles of Merger Document No. 20100746864-
78 (recorded date 10/04/2010) 

Vol. 15, 2231–2241 

33 Excerpted Transcript of September 28, 2015 
Deposition of Edward William Bayuk 

Vol. 15, 2242–2256 

34 Grant Deed for real property 1254 Mary Fleming 
Circle, Palm Springs, CA 92262; APN: 507-520-
015 (recorded 11/04/2010) 

Vol. 15, 2257–2258 
 

35 General Conveyance made as of Oct. 31, 2010 
between Woodland Heights Limited (“Vendor”) 
and Arcadia Living Trust (“Purchaser”) 

Vol. 15, 2259–2265 
 

36 Appraisal of Real Property as of Sept. 24, 2010: 
371 El Camino Del Mar, Laguna Beach, CA 
92651 

Vol. 15, 2266–2292 
 

37 Excerpted Transcript of December 6, 2016 
Deposition of P. Morabito 

Vol. 15, 2293–2295 
 

38 Page intentionally left blank Vol. 15, 2296–2297 

39 Ledger of Edward Bayuk to P. Morabito Vol. 15, 2298–2300 
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40 Loan Calculator: Payment Amount (Standard 
Loan Amortization) 

Vol. 15, 2301–2304 

41 Payment Schedule of Edward Bayuk Note in 
Favor of P. Morabito 

Vol. 15, 2305–2308 

42 November 10, 2011 email from Vacco RE: Baruk 
Properties, LLC/P. Morabito/Bank of America, 
N.A. 

Vol. 15, 2309–2312 

43 May 23, 2012 email from Vacco to Steve Peek 
RE: Formal Settlement Proposal to resolve the 
Morabito matter  

Vol. 15, 2313–2319 

44 Excerpted Transcript of March 12, 2015 
Deposition of 341 Meeting of Creditors 

Vol. 15, 2320–2326 

45 Shareholder Interest Purchase Agreement 
between P. Morabito and Snowshoe Petroleum, 
Inc. (dated 09/30/2010) 

Vol. 15, 2327–2332 
 

46 P. Morabito Statement of Assets & Liabilities as 
of May 5, 2009 

Vol. 15, 2333–2334 
 

47 March 10, 2010 email from Naz Afshar, CPA to 
Darren Takemoto, CPA RE: Current Personal 
Financial Statement  

Vol. 15, 2335–2337 
 

48 March 10, 2010 email from P. Morabito to Jon 
RE: ExxonMobil CIM for Florida and associated 
maps  

Vol. 15, 2338–2339 
 

49 March 20, 2010 email from P. Morabito to Vacco 
RE: proceed with placing binding bid on June 
22nd with ExxonMobil  

Vol. 15, 2340–2341 
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50 P. Morabito Statement of Assets & Liabilities as 
of May 30, 2010 

Vol. 15, 2342–2343 
 

51 June 28, 2010 email from P. Morabito to George 
R. Garner RE: ExxonMobil Chicago Market 
Business Plan Review  

Vol. 15, 2344–2345 
 

52 Plan of Merger of Consolidated Western Corp. 
with and into Superpumper, Inc. (dated 
09/28/2010) 

Vol. 15, 2346–2364 
 

53 Page intentionally left blank Vol. 15, 2365–2366 

54 BBVA Compass Proposed Request on behalf of 
Superpumper, Inc. (dated 12/15/2010) 

Vol. 15, 2367–2397 

55 Business Valuation Agreement between Matrix 
Capital Markets Group, Inc. and Superpumper, 
Inc. (dated 09/30/2010) 

Vol. 15, 2398–2434 
 

56 Expert report of James L. McGovern, CPA/CFF, 
CVA (dated 01/25/2016) 

Vol. 16, 2435–2509 

57 June 18, 2014 email from Sam Morabito to 
Michael Vanek RE: SPI Analysis  

Vol. 17, 2510–2511 

58 Declaration of P. Morabito in Support of 
Opposition to Motion of JH, Inc., Jerry Herbst, 
and Berry-Hinckley Industries for Order 
Prohibiting Debtor from Using, Acquiring, or 
Disposing of or Transferring Assets Pursuant to 
11 U.S.C. §§ 105 and 303(f) Pending 
Appointment of Trustee; Case No. BK-N-13-
51237 (filed 07/01/2013) 

Vol. 17, 2512–2516 
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59 State of California Secretary of State Limited 
Liability Company – Snowshoe Properties, LLC; 
File No. 201027310002 (filed 09/29/2010) 

Vol. 17, 2517–2518 

60 PROMISSORY NOTE [Snowshoe Petroleum 
(“Maker”) promises to pay P. Morabito 
(“Holder”) the principal sum of $1,462,213.00] 
(dated 11/01/2010) 

Vol. 17, 2519–2529 

61 PROMISSORY NOTE [Superpumper, Inc. 
(“Maker”) promises to pay Compass Bank (the 
“Bank” and/or “Holder”) the principal sum of 
$3,000,000.00] (dated 08/13/2010) 

Vol. 17, 2530–2538 

62 Excerpted Transcript of October 21, 2015 
Deposition of Salvatore R. Morabito 

Vol. 17, 2539–2541 

63 Page intentionally left blank Vol. 17, 2542–2543 

64 Edward Bayuk’s Answers to Plaintiff’s First Set 
of Interrogatories (dated 09/14/2014) 

Vol. 17, 2544–2557 

65 October 12, 2012 email from Stan Bernstein to P. 
Morabito RE: 2011 return  

Vol. 17, 2558–2559 

66 Page intentionally left blank Vol. 17, 2560–2561 

67 Excerpted Transcript of October 20, 2015 
Deposition of Dennis C. Vacco 

Vol. 17, 2562–2564 

68 Snowshoe Petroleum, Inc.’s letter of intent to set 
out the framework of the contemplated 
transaction between: Snowshoe Petroleum, Inc.; 
David Dwelle, LP; Eclipse Investments, LP; 
Speedy Investments; and TAD Limited 
Partnership (dated 04/21/2011) 

Vol. 17, 2565–2572 
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69 Excerpted Transcript of July 10, 2017 Deposition 
of Dennis C. Vacco 

Vol. 17, 2573–2579 

70 April 15, 2011 email from P. Morabito to 
Christian Lovelace; Gregory Ivancic; Vacco RE: 
$65 million loan offer from Cerberus  

Vol. 17, 2580–2582 

71 Email from Vacco to P. Morabito RE: $2 million 
second mortgage on the Reno house 

Vol. 17, 2583–2584 

72 Email from Vacco to P. Morabito RE: Tim Haves Vol. 17, 2585–2586 

73 Settlement Agreement, Loan Agreement 
Modification & Release dated as of Sept. 7, 2012, 
entered into by Bank of America and P. Morabito 

Vol. 17, 2587–2595 

74 Page intentionally left blank Vol. 17, 2596–2597 

75 February 10, 2012 email from Vacco to Paul 
Wells and Timothy Haves RE: 1461 Glenneyre 
Street, Laguna Beach – Sale  

Vol. 17, 2598–2602 

76 May 8, 2012 email from P. Morabito to Vacco 
RE: Proceed with the corporate set-up with Ray, 
Edward and P. Morabito 

Vol. 17, 2603–2604 

77 September 4, 2012 email from Vacco to Edward 
Bayuk RE: Second Deed of Trust documents  

Vol. 17, 2605–2606 

78 September 18, 2012 email from P. Morabito to 
Edward Bayuk RE: Deed of Trust  

Vol. 17, 2607–2611 

79 October 3, 2012 email from Vacco to P. Morabito 
RE: Term Sheet on both real estate deal and 
option  

Vol. 17, 2612–2614 
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80 March 14, 2013 email from P. Morabito to Vacco 
RE: BHI Hinckley  

Vol. 17, 2615–2616 

81 Page intentionally left blank Vol. 17, 2617–2618 

82 November 11, 2011 email from Vacco to P. 
Morabito RE: Trevor’s commitment to sign  

Vol. 17, 2619–2620 

83 November 28, 2011 email string RE: Wiring 
$560,000 to Lippes Mathias 

Vol. 17, 2621–2623 

84 Page intentionally left blank Vol. 17, 2624–2625 

85 Page intentionally left blank Vol. 17, 2626–2627 

86 Order for Relief Under Chapter 7; Case No. BK-
N-13-51236 (filed 12/22/2014) 

Vol. 17, 2628–2634 

87 Report of Undisputed Election (11 U.S.C § 702); 
Case No. BK-N-13-51237 (filed 01/23/2015)  

Vol. 17, 2635–2637 

88 Amended Stipulation and Order to Substitute a 
Party to NRCP 17(a) (filed 06/11/2015)  

Vol. 17, 2638–2642 

89 Membership Interest Purchase Agreement, 
entered into as of Oct. 6, 2010 between P. 
Morabito and Edward Bayuk  

Vol. 17, 2643–2648 

90 Complaint; Case No. BK-N-13-51237 (filed 
10/15/2015) 

Vol. 17, 2649–2686 

91 Fifth Amendment and Restatement of the Trust 
Agreement for the Arcadia Living Trust (dated 
09/30/2010) 

Vol. 17, 2687–2726 
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Objection to Recommendation for Order filed August 17, 
2017 (filed 08/28/2017) 

Vol. 18, 2727–2734 

 

Exhibit to Objection to Recommendation for Order   

Exhibit Document Description  

1 Plaintiff’s counsel’s Jan. 24, 2017, email 
memorializing the discovery dispute agreement 

Vol. 18, 2735–2736 

Opposition to Objection to Recommendation for Order filed 
August 17, 2017 (filed 09/05/2017) 

Vol. 18, 2737–2748 

Exhibit to Opposition to Objection to Recommendation 
for Order 

 

Exhibit Document Description  

A Declaration of Teresa M. Pilatowicz, Esq., in 
Support of Opposition to Objection to 
Recommendation for Order (filed 09/05/2017) 

Vol. 18, 2749–2752 

Reply to Opposition to Objection to Recommendation for 
Order filed August 17, 2017 (dated 09/15/2017) 

Vol. 18, 2753–2758 

Defendants’ Opposition to Plaintiff’s Motion for Partial 
Summary Judgment (filed 09/22/2017) 

Vol. 18, 2759–2774 

Defendants’ Separate Statement of Disputed Facts in 
Support of Opposition to Plaintiff’s Motion for Partial 
Summary Judgment (filed 09/22/2017) 

 

Vol. 18, 2775–2790 
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Exhibits to Defendants’ Separate Statement of Disputed 
Facts in Support of Opposition to Plaintiff’s Motion for 
Partial Summary Judgment 

 

Exhibit Document Description  

1 Judgment in Consolidated Nevada Corp., et al v. 
JH. et al.; Case No. CV07-02764 (filed 
08/23/2011) 

Vol. 18, 2791–2793 

2 Excerpted Transcript of October 20, 2015 
Deposition of Dennis C. Vacco 

Vol. 18, 2794–2810 

3 Order Denying Motion to Dismiss Involuntary 
Chapter 7 Petition and Suspending Proceedings 
Pursuant to 11 U.S.C §305(a)(1); Case No. BK-
N-13-51237 (filed 12/17/2013) 

Vol. 18, 2811–2814 

4 Excerpted Transcript of March 21, 2016 
Deposition of P. Morabito 

Vol. 18, 2815–2826 

5 Excerpted Transcript of September 28, 2015 
Deposition of Edward William Bayuk  

Vol. 18, 2827–2857 

6 Appraisal  Vol. 18, 2858–2859 

7 Budget Summary as of Jan. 7, 2016 Vol. 18, 2860–2862 

8 Excerpted Transcript of March 24, 2016 
Deposition of Dennis Banks 

Vol. 18, 2863–2871 

9 Excerpted Transcript of March 22, 2016 
Deposition of Michael Sewitz 

Vol. 18, 2872–2879 

10 Excerpted Transcript of April 27, 2011 
Deposition of Darryl Noble 

Vol. 18, 2880–2883 



Page 30 of 72 

DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION 

 

LOCATION 

11 Copies of cancelled checks from Edward Bayuk 
made payable to P. Morabito 

Vol. 18, 2884–2892 

12 CBRE Appraisal of 14th Street Card Lock 
Facility (dated 02/26/2010) 

Vol. 18, 2893–2906 

13 Bank of America wire transfer from P. Morabito 
to Salvatore Morabito in the amount of 
$146,127.00; and a wire transfer from P. 
Morabito to Lippes for $25.00 (date 10/01/2010) 

Vol. 18, 2907–2908 

14 Excerpted Transcript of October 21, 2015 
Deposition of Christian Mark Lovelace 

Vol. 18, 2909–2918 

15 June 18, 2014 email from Sam Morabito to 
Michael Vanek RE: Analysis of the Superpumper 
transaction in 2010  

Vol. 18, 2919–2920 

16 Excerpted Transcript of October 21, 2015 
Deposition of Salvatore R. Morabito 

Vol. 18, 2921–2929 

17 PROMISSORY NOTE [Snowshoe Petroleum 
(“Maker”) promises to pay P. Morabito 
(“Holder”) the principal sum of $1,462,213.00] 
(dated 11/01/2010) 

Vol. 18, 2930–2932 

18 TERM NOTE [P. Morabito (“Borrower”) 
promises to pay Consolidated Western Corp. 
(“Lender”) the principal sum of $939,000.00, plus 
interest] (dated 09/01/2010) 

Vol. 18, 2933–2934 

19 SUCCESSOR PROMISSORY NOTE 
[Snowshoe Petroleum (“Maker”) promises to pay 
P. Morabito (“Holder”) the principal sum of 
$492,937.30, plus interest] (dated 02/01/2011) 

Vol. 18, 2935–2937 
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20 Edward Bayuk’s wire transfer to Lippes in the 
amount of $517,547.20 (dated 09/29/2010) 

Vol. 18, 2938–2940 

21 Salvatore Morabito Bank of Montreal September 
2011 Wire Transfer  

Vol. 18, 2941–2942 

22 Declaration of Salvatore Morabito (dated 
09/21/2017) 

Vol. 18, 2943–2944 

23 Edward Bayuk bank wire transfer to 
Superpumper, Inc., in the amount of $659,000.00 
(dated 09/30/2010) 

Vol. 18, 2945–2947 

24 Edward Bayuk checking account statements 
between 2010 and 2011 funding the company 
with transfers totaling $500,000 

Vol. 18, 2948–2953 

25 Salvatore Morabito’s wire transfer statement 
between 2010 and 2011, funding the company 
with $750,000 

Vol. 18, 2954–2957 

26 Payment Schedule of Edward Bayuk Note in 
Favor of P. Morabito 

Vol. 18, 2958–2961 

27 September 15, 2010 email from Vacco to 
Yalamanchili and P. Morabito RE: Follow Up 
Thoughts  

Vol. 18, 2962–2964 

Reply in Support of Motion for Partial Summary Judgment 
(dated 10/10/2017)  

Vol. 19, 2965–2973 

 

Order Regarding Discovery Commissioner’s 
Recommendation for Order dated August 17, 2017 (filed 
12/07/2017) 

Vol. 19, 2974–2981 
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LOCATION 

Order Denying Motion for Partial Summary Judgment 
(filed 12/11/2017) 

Vol. 19, 2982–2997 

Defendants’ Motions in Limine (filed 09/12/2018) Vol. 19, 2998–3006 

Exhibits to Defendants’ Motions in Limine  

Exhibit Document Description  

1 Plaintiff’s Second Supplement to Amended 
Disclosures Pursuant to NRCP 16.1(A)(1) (dated 
04/28/2016) 

Vol. 19, 3007–3016 

2 Excerpted Transcript of March 25, 2016 
Deposition of William A. Leonard 

Vol. 19, 3017–3023 

3 Plaintiff, Jerry Herbst’s Responses to Defendant 
Snowshoe Petroleum, Inc.’s Set of Interrogatories 
(dated 02/11/2015); and Plaintiff, Jerry Herbst’s 
Responses to Defendant, Salvatore Morabito’s 
Set of Interrogatories (dated 02/12/2015) 

Vol. 19, 3024–3044 

Motion in Limine to Exclude Testimony of Jan Friederich 
(filed 09/20/2018)  

Vol. 19, 3045–3056 

Exhibits to Motion in Limine to Exclude Testimony of 
Jan Friederich 

 

Exhibit Document Description  

1 Defendants’ Rebuttal Expert Witness Disclosure 
(dated 02/29/2016) 

Vol. 19, 3057–3071 

2 Condensed Transcript of March 29, 2016 
Deposition of Jan Friederich 

Vol. 19, 3072–3086 
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Opposition to Defendants’ Motions in Limine (filed 
09/28/2018) 

Vol. 19, 3087–3102 

Exhibits to Opposition to Defendants’ Motions in 
Limine 

 

Exhibit Document Description  

A Declaration of Teresa M. Pilatowicz, Esq. in 
Support of Opposition to Defendants’ Motions in 
Limine (filed 09/28/2018) 

Vol. 19, 3103–3107 

A-1 Plaintiff’s February 19, 2016, Amended 
Disclosures Pursuant to NRCP 16.1(A)(1) 

Vol. 19, 3108–3115 

A-2 Plaintiff’s January 26, 2016, Expert Witnesses 
Disclosures (without exhibits) 

Vol. 19, 3116–3122 

A-3 Defendants’ January 26, 2016, and February 29, 
2016, Expert Witness Disclosures (without 
exhibits) 

Vol. 19, 3123–3131 

A-4 Plaintiff’s August 17, 2017, Motion for Partial 
Summary Judgment (without exhibits) 

Vol. 19, 3132–3175 

A-5 Plaintiff’s August 17, 2017, Statement of 
Undisputed Facts in Support of his Motion for 
Partial Summary Judgment (without exhibits) 

Vol. 19, 3176–3205 

Defendants’ Reply in Support of Motions in Limine (filed 
10/08/2018) 

Vol. 20, 3206–3217 

 

Exhibit to Defendants’ Reply in Support of Motions in 
Limine 

 

Exhibit Document Description  
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1 Chapter 7 Trustee, William A. Leonard’s 
Responses to Defendants’ First Set of 
Interrogatories (dated 05/28/2015) 

Vol. 20, 3218–3236 

Defendants’ Opposition to Plaintiff’s Motions in Limine to 
Exclude the Testimony of Jan Friederich (filed 10/08/2018) 

Vol. 20, 3237–3250 

Exhibits to Defendants’ Opposition to Plaintiff’s 
Motions in Limine to Exclude the Testimony of Jan 
Friederich 

 

Exhibit Document Description  

1 Excerpt of Matrix Report (dated 10/13/2010) Vol. 20, 3251–3255 

2 Defendants’ Rebuttal Expert Witness Disclosure 
(dated 02/29/2016) 

Vol. 20, 3256–3270 

3 November 9, 2009 email from P. Morabito to 
Daniel Fletcher; Jim Benbrook; Don Whitehead; 
Sam Morabito, etc. RE: Jan Friederich entered 
consulting agreement with Superpumper  

Vol. 20, 3271–3272 

4 Excerpted Transcript of March 29, 2016 
Deposition of Jan Friederich 

Vol. 20, 3273–3296 

Defendants’ Objections to Plaintiff’s Pretrial Disclosures 
(filed 10/12/2018) 

Vol. 20, 3297–3299 

Objections to Defendants’ Pretrial Disclosures (filed 
10/12/2018) 

Vol. 20, 3300–3303 

Reply to Defendants’ Opposition to Plaintiff’s Motion in 
Limine to Exclude the Testimony of Jan Friederich (filed 
10/12/2018) 

Vol. 20, 3304–3311 
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Minutes of September 11, 2018, Pre-trial Conference (filed 
10/19/2018) 

Vol. 20, 3312 

Stipulated Facts (filed 10/29/2018) Vol. 20, 3313–3321 

Defendants’ Points and Authorities RE: Objection to 
Admission of Documents in Conjunction with the 
Depositions of P. Morabito and Dennis Vacco (filed 
10/30/2018) 

Vol. 20, 3322–3325 

Plaintiff’s Points and Authorities Regarding Authenticity 
and Hearsay Issues (filed 10/31/2018) 

Vol. 20, 3326–3334 

Clerk’s Trial Exhibit List (filed 02/28/2019) Vol. 21, 3335–3413 

Exhibits to Clerk’s Trial Exhibit List  

Exhibit Document Description  

1 Certified copy of the Transcript of September 13, 
2010 Judge’s Ruling; Case No. CV07-02764 

Vol. 21, 3414–3438 

2 Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and 
Judgment; Case No. CV07-02764 (filed 
10/12/2010) 

Vol. 21, 3439–3454 

3 Judgment; Case No. CV07-0767 (filed 
08/23/2011) 

Vol. 21, 3455–3456 

4 Confession of Judgment; Case No. CV07-02764 
(filed 06/18/2013) 

Vol. 21, 3457–3481 

5 November 30, 2011 Settlement Agreement and 
Mutual Release 

Vol. 22, 3482–3613 

6 March 1, 2013 Forbearance Agreement Vol. 22, 3614–3622 
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8 Order Denying Motion to Dismiss Involuntary 
Chapter 7 Petition and Suspending Proceedings, 
Case 13-51237. ECF No. 94, (filed 12/17/2013) 

Vol. 22, 3623–3625 

19 Report of Undisputed Election– Appointment of 
Trustee, Case No. 13-51237, ECF No. 220 

Vol. 22, 3626–3627 

20 Stipulation and Order to Substitute a Party 
Pursuant to NRCP 17(a), Case No. CV13-02663, 
May 15, 2015 

Vol. 22, 3628–3632 

21 Non-Dischargeable Judgment Regarding 
Plaintiff’s First and Second Causes of Action, 
Case No. 15-05019-GWZ, ECF No. 123, April 
30, 2018 

Vol. 22, 3633–3634 

22 Memorandum & Decision; Case No. 15-05019-
GWZ, ECF No. 124, April 30, 2018 

Vol. 22, 3635–3654 

23 Amended Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law 
in Support of Judgment Regarding Plaintiff’s 
First and Second Causes of Action; Case 15-
05019-GWZ, ECF No. 122, April 30, 2018 

Vol. 22, 3655–3679 

25 September 15, 2010 email from Yalamanchili to 
Vacco and P. Morabito RE: Follow Up Thoughts 

Vol. 22, 3680–3681 

26 September 18, 2010 email from P. Morabito to 
Vacco 

Vol. 22, 3682–3683 

27 September 20, 2010 email from Vacco to P. 
Morabito RE: Spirit 

Vol. 22, 3684–3684 

28 September 20, 2010 email between Yalamanchili 
and Crotty RE: Morabito -Wire 

Vol. 22, 3685–3687 
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29 September 20, 2010 email from Yalamanchili to 
Graber RE: Attorney Client Privileged 
Communication  

Vol. 22, 3688–3689 

30 September 21, 2010 email from P. Morabito to 
Vacco and Cross RE: Attorney Client Privileged 
Communication 

Vol. 22, 3690–3692 

31 September 23, 2010 email chain between Graber 
and P. Morabito RE: Change of Primary 
Residence from Reno to Laguna Beach 

Vol. 22, 3693–3694 

32 September 23, 2010 email from Yalamanchili to 
Graber RE: Change of Primary Residence from 
Reno to Laguna Beach 

Vol. 22, 3695–3696 

33 September 24, 2010 email from P. Morabito to 
Vacco RE: Superpumper, Inc. 

Vol. 22, 3697–3697 

34 September 26, 2010 email from Vacco to P. 
Morabito RE: Judgment for a fixed debt 

Vol. 22, 3698–3698 

35 September 27, 2010 email from P. Morabito to 
Vacco RE: First Amendment to Residential Lease 
executed 9/27/2010 

Vol. 22, 3699–3701 

36 November 7, 2012 emails between Vacco, P. 
Morabito, C. Lovelace RE: Attorney Client 
Privileged Communication  

Vol. 22, 3702–3703 

37 Morabito BMO Bank Statement – September 
2010 

Vol. 22, 3704–3710 

38 Lippes Mathias Trust Ledger History Vol. 23, 3711–3716 
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39 Fifth Amendment & Restatement of the Trust 
Agreement for the Arcadia Living Trust dated 
September 30, 2010 

Vol. 23, 3717–3755 

42 P. Morabito Statement of Assets & Liabilities as 
of May 5, 2009 

Vol. 23, 3756–3756 

43 March 10, 2010 email chain between Afshar and 
Takemoto RE: Current Personal Financial 
Statement  

Vol. 23, 3757–3758 

 

44 Salazar Net Worth Report (dated 03/15/2011) Vol. 23, 3759–3772 

45 Purchase and Sale Agreement Vol. 23, 3773–3780 

46 First Amendment to Purchase and Sale 
Agreement 

Vol. 23, 3781–3782 

47 Panorama – Estimated Settlement Statement Vol. 23, 3783–3792 

48 El Camino – Final Settlement Statement Vol. 23, 3793–3793 

49 Los Olivos – Final Settlement Statement Vol. 23, 3794–3794 

50 Deed for Transfer of Panorama Property Vol. 23, 3795–3804 

51 Deed for Transfer for Los Olivos Vol. 23, 3805–3806 

52 Deed for Transfer of El Camino Vol. 23, 3807–3808 

53 Kimmel Appraisal Report for Panorama and 
Clayton 

Vol. 23, 3809–3886 

54 Bill of Sale – Panorama Vol. 23, 3887–3890 

55 Bill of Sale – Mary Fleming Vol. 23, 3891–3894 

56 Bill of Sale – El Camino Vol. 23, 3895–3898 
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57 Bill of Sale – Los Olivos Vol. 23, 3899–3902 

58 Declaration of Value and Transfer Deed of 8355 
Panorama (recorded 12/31/2012) 

Vol. 23, 3903–3904 

60 Baruk Properties Operating Agreement Vol. 23, 3905–3914 

61 Baruk Membership Transfer Agreement Vol. 24, 3915–3921 

62 Promissory Note for $1,617,050 (dated 
10/01/2010) 

Vol. 24, 3922–3924 

63 Baruk Properties/Snowshoe Properties, 
Certificate of Merger (filed 10/04/2010) 

Vol. 24, 3925–3926 

64 Baruk Properties/Snowshoe Properties, Articles 
of Merger 

Vol. 24, 3927–3937 

65 Grant Deed from Snowshoe to Bayuk Living 
Trust; Doc No. 2010-0531071 (recorded 
11/04/2010) 

Vol. 24, 3938–3939 

66 Grant Deed – 1461 Glenneyre; Doc No. 
2010000511045 (recorded 10/08/2010) 

Vol. 24, 3940–3941 

67 Grant Deed – 570 Glenneyre; Doc No. 
2010000508587 (recorded 10/08/2010) 

Vol. 24, 3942–3944 

68 Attorney File re: Conveyance between Woodland 
Heights and Arcadia Living Trust 

Vol. 24, 3945–3980 

69 October 24, 2011 email from P. Morabito to 
Vacco RE: Attorney Client Privileged 
Communication  

Vol. 24, 3981–3982 
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70 November 10, 2011 email chain between Vacco 
and P. Morabito RE: Baruk Properties, LLC/Paul 
Morabito/Bank of America, N.A. 

Vol. 24, 3983–3985 

71 Bayuk First Ledger Vol. 24, 3986–3987 

72 Amortization Schedule Vol. 24, 3988–3990 

73 Bayuk Second Ledger Vol. 24, 3991–3993 

74 Opposition to Motion for Summary Judgment and 
Declaration of Edward Bayuk; Case No. 13-
51237, ECF No. 146 (filed 10/03/2014)  

Vol. 24, 3994–4053 

75 March 30, 2012 email from Vacco to Bayuk RE: 
Letter to BOA 

Vol. 24, 4054–4055 

76 March 10, 2010 email chain between P. Morabito 
and jon@aim13.com RE: Strictly Confidential  

Vol. 24, 4056–4056 

77 May 20, 2010 email chain between P. Morabito, 
Vacco and Michael Pace RE: Proceed with 
placing a Binding Bid on June 22nd with 
ExxonMobil 

Vol. 24, 4057–4057 

78 Morabito Personal Financial Statement May 2010 Vol. 24, 4058–4059 

79 June 28, 2010 email from P. Morabito to George 
Garner RE: ExxonMobil Chicago Market 
Business Plan Review  

Vol. 24, 4060–4066 

80 Shareholder Interest Purchase Agreement Vol. 24, 4067–4071 

81 Plan of Merger of Consolidated Western 
Corporation with and Into Superpumper, Inc. 

Vol. 24, 4072–4075 

mailto:jon@aim13.com
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82 Articles of Merger of Consolidated Western 
Corporation with and Into Superpumper, Inc. 

Vol. 24, 4076–4077 

83 Unanimous Written Consent of the Board of 
Directors and Sole Shareholder of Superpumper, 
Inc. 

Vol. 24, 4078–4080 

84 Unanimous Written Consent of the Directors and 
Shareholders of Consolidated Western 
Corporation 

Vol. 24, 4081–4083 

85 Arizona Corporation Commission Letter dated 
October 21, 2010 

Vol. 24, 4084–4091 

86 Nevada Articles of Merger Vol. 24, 4092–4098 

87 New York Creation of Snowshoe Vol. 24, 4099–4103 

88 April 26, 2012 email from Vacco to Afshar RE: 
Ownership Structure of SPI 

Vol. 24, 4104–4106 

90 September 30, 2010 Matrix Retention Agreement Vol. 24, 4107–4110 

91 McGovern Expert Report Vol. 25, 4111–4189 

92 Appendix B to McGovern Report – Source 4 – 
Budgets 

Vol. 25, 4190–4191 

103 Superpumper Note in the amount of 
$1,462,213.00 (dated 11/01/2010) 

Vol. 25, 4192–4193 

104 Superpumper Successor Note in the amount of 
$492,937.30 (dated 02/01/2011) 

Vol. 25, 4194–4195 

105 Superpumper Successor Note in the amount of 
$939,000 (dated 02/01/2011) 

Vol. 25, 4196–4197 
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106 Superpumper Stock Power transfers to S. 
Morabito and Bayuk (dated 01/01/2011) 

Vol. 25, 4198–4199 

107 Declaration of P. Morabito in Support of 
Opposition to Motion of JH, Inc., Jerry Herbst, 
and Berry- Hinckley Industries for Order 
Prohibiting Debtor from Using, Acquiring or 
Transferring Assets Pursuant to 11 U.S.C. §§ 105 
and 303(f) Pending Appointment of Trustee, Case 
13-51237, ECF No. 22 (filed 07/01/2013) 

Vol. 25, 4200–4203 

108 October 12, 2012 email between P. Morabito and 
Bernstein RE: 2011 Return 

Vol. 25, 4204–4204 

109 Compass Term Loan (dated 12/21/2016) Vol. 25, 4205–4213 

110 P. Morabito – Term Note in the amount of 
$939,000.000 (dated 09/01/2010) 

Vol. 25, 4214–4214 

111 Loan Agreement between Compass Bank and 
Superpumper (dated 12/21/2016) 

Vol. 25, 4215–4244 

112 Consent Agreement (dated 12/28/2010)  Vol. 25, 4245–4249 

113 Superpumper Financial Statement (dated 
12/31/2007)  

Vol. 25, 4250–4263 

114 Superpumper Financial Statement (dated 
12/31/2009)  

Vol. 25, 4264–4276 

115 Notes Receivable Interest Income Calculation 
(dated 12/31/2009) 

Vol. 25, 4277–4278 

116 Superpumper Inc. Audit Conclusions Memo 
(dated 12/31/2010) 

Vol. 25, 4279–4284 



Page 43 of 72 

DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION 

 

LOCATION 

117 Superpumper 2010 YTD Income Statement and 
Balance Sheets 

Vol. 25, 4285–4299 

118 March 12, 2010 Management Letter  Vol. 25, 4300–4302 

119 Superpumper Unaudited August 2010 Balance 
Sheet 

Vol. 25, 4303–4307 

120 Superpumper Financial Statements (dated 
12/31/2010) 

Vol. 25, 4308–4322 

121 Notes Receivable Balance as of September 30, 
2010 

Vol. 26, 4323 

122 Salvatore Morabito Term Note $2,563,542.00 as 
of December 31, 2010 

Vol. 26, 4324–4325 

123 Edward Bayuk Term Note $2,580,500.00 as of 
December 31, 2010 

Vol. 26, 4326–4327 

125 April 21, 2011 Management letter  Vol. 26, 4328–4330 

126 Bayuk and S. Morabito Statements of Assets & 
Liabilities as of February 1, 2011 

Vol. 26, 4331–4332 

127 January 6, 2012 email from Bayuk to Lovelace 
RE: Letter of Credit 

Vol. 26, 4333–4335 

128 January 6, 2012 email from Vacco to Bernstein Vol. 26, 4336–4338 

129 January 7, 2012 email from Bernstein to Lovelace Vol. 26, 4339–4343 

130 March 18, 2012 email from P. Morabito to Vacco Vol. 26, 4344–4344 

131 April 21, 2011 Proposed Acquisition of Nella Oil Vol. 26, 4345–4351 

132 April 15, 2011 email chain between P. Morabito 
and Vacco 

Vol. 26, 4352 
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133 April 5, 2011 email from P. Morabito to Vacco Vol. 26, 4353 

134 April 16, 2012 email from Vacco to Morabito Vol. 26, 4354–4359 

135 August 7, 2011 email exchange between Vacco 
and P. Morabito 

Vol. 26, 4360 

136 August 2011 Lovelace letter to Timothy Halves Vol. 26, 4361–4365 

137 August 24, 2011 email from Vacco to P. Morabito 
RE: Tim Haves 

Vol. 26, 4366 

138 November 11, 2011 email from Vacco to P. 
Morabito RE: Getting Trevor’s commitment to 
sign 

Vol. 26, 4367 

139 November 16, 2011 email from P. Morabito to 
Vacco RE: Vacco’s litigation letter  

Vol. 26, 4368 

140 November 28, 2011 email chain between Vacco, 
S. Morabito, and P. Morabito RE: $560,000 wire 
to Lippes Mathias 

Vol. 26, 4369–4370 

141 December 7, 2011 email from Vacco to P. 
Morabito RE: Moreno 

Vol. 26, 4371 

142 February 10, 2012 email chain between P. 
Morabito Wells, and Vacco RE: 1461 Glenneyre 
Street - Sale 

Vol. 26, 4372–4375 

143 April 20, 2012 email from P. Morabito to Bayuk 
RE: BofA 

Vol. 26, 4376 

144 April 24, 2012 email from P. Morabito to Vacco 
RE: SPI Loan Detail 

Vol. 26, 4377–4378 



Page 45 of 72 

DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION 

 

LOCATION 

145 September 4, 2012 email chain between Vacco 
and Bayuk RE: Second Deed of Trust documents 

Vol. 26, 4379–4418 

147 September 4, 2012 email from P. Morabito to 
Vacco RE: Wire  

Vol. 26, 4419–4422 

148 September 4, 2012 email from Bayuk to Vacco 
RE: Wire 

Vol. 26, 4423–4426 

149 December 6, 2012 email from Vacco to P. 
Morabito RE: BOA and the path of money 

Vol. 26, 4427–4428 

150 September 18, 2012 email chain between P. 
Morabito and Bayuk 

Vol. 26, 4429–4432 

151 October 3, 2012 email chain between Vacco and 
P. Morabito RE: Snowshoe Properties, LLC 

Vol. 26, 4433–4434 

152 September 3, 2012 email from P. Morabito to 
Vacco RE: Wire  

Vol. 26, 4435 

153 March 14, 2013 email chain between P. Morabito 
and Vacco RE: BHI Hinckley 

Vol. 26, 4436 

154 Paul Morabito 2009 Tax Return Vol. 26, 4437–4463 

155 Superpumper Form 8879-S tax year ended 
December 31, 2010 

Vol. 26, 4464–4484 

156 2010 U.S. S Corporation Tax Return for 
Consolidated Western Corporation 

Vol. 27, 4485–4556 

157 Snowshoe form 8879-S for year ended December 
31, 2010 

Vol. 27, 4557–4577 

158 Snowshoe Form 1120S 2011 Amended Tax 
Return 

Vol. 27, 4578–4655 



Page 46 of 72 

DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION 

 

LOCATION 

159 September 14, 2012 email from Vacco to P. 
Morabito  

Vol. 27, 4656–4657 

160 October 1, 2012 email from P. Morabito to Vacco 
RE: Monday work for Dennis and Christian 

Vol. 27, 4658 

161 December 18, 2012 email from Vacco to P. 
Morabito RE: Attorney Client Privileged 
Communication 

Vol. 27, 4659 

162 April 24, 2013 email from P. Morabito to Vacco 
RE: BHI Trust 

Vol. 27, 4660 

163 Membership Interest Purchases, Agreement – 
Watch My Block (dated 10/06/2010) 

Vol. 27, 4661–4665 

164 Watch My Block organizational documents Vol. 27, 4666–4669 

174 October 15, 2015 Certificate of Service of copy of 
Lippes Mathias Wexler Friedman’s Response to 
Subpoena 

Vol. 27, 4670 

175 Order Granting Motion to Compel Responses to 
Deposition Questions ECF No. 502; Case No. 13-
51237-gwz (filed 02/03/2016) 

Vol. 27, 4671–4675 

179 Gursey Schneider LLP Subpoena Vol. 28, 4676–4697 

180 Summary Appraisal of 570 Glenneyre Vol. 28, 4698–4728 

181 Appraisal of 1461 Glenneyre Street Vol. 28, 4729–4777 

182 Appraisal of 370 Los Olivos Vol. 28, 4778–4804 

183 Appraisal of 371 El Camino Del Mar Vol. 28, 4805–4830 

184 Appraisal of 1254 Mary Fleming Circle Vol. 28, 4831–4859 
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185 Mortgage – Panorama Vol. 28, 4860–4860 

186 Mortgage – El Camino Vol. 28, 4861 

187 Mortgage – Los Olivos Vol. 28, 4862 

188 Mortgage – Glenneyre Vol. 28, 4863 

189 Mortgage – Mary Fleming Vol. 28, 4864 

190 Settlement Statement – 371 El Camino Del Mar Vol. 28, 4865 

191 Settlement Statement – 370 Los Olivos Vol. 28, 4866 

192 2010 Declaration of Value of 8355 Panorama Dr Vol. 28, 4867–4868 

193 Mortgage – 8355 Panorama Drive Vol. 28, 4869–4870 

194 Compass – Certificate of Custodian of Records 
(dated 12/21/2016) 

Vol. 28, 4871–4871 

196 June 6, 2014 Declaration of Sam Morabito – 
Exhibit 1 to Snowshoe Reply in Support of 
Motion to Dismiss Complaint for Lack of 
Personal Jurisdiction – filed in Case No. CV13-
02663 

Vol. 28, 4872–4874 

197 June 19, 2014 Declaration of Sam Morabito – 
Exhibit 1 to Superpumper Motion to Dismiss 
Complaint for Lack of Personal Jurisdiction – 
filed in Case No. CV13-02663 

Vol. 28, 4875–4877 

198 September 22, 2017 Declaration of Sam Morabito 
– Exhibit 22 to Defendants’ SSOF in Support of 
Opposition to Plaintiff's MSJ – filed in Case No. 
CV13-02663 

Vol. 28, 4878–4879 



Page 48 of 72 

DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION 

 

LOCATION 

222 Kimmel – January 21, 2016, Comment on Alves 
Appraisal 

Vol. 28, 4880–4883 

223 September 20, 2010 email from Yalamanchili to 
Morabito 

Vol. 28, 4884 

224 March 24, 2011 email from Naz Afshar RE: 
telephone call regarding CWC 

Vol. 28, 4885–4886 

225 Bank of America Records for Edward Bayuk 
(dated 09/05/2012) 

Vol. 28, 4887–4897 

226 June 11, 2007 Wholesale Marketer Agreement Vol. 29, 4898–4921 

227 May 25, 2006 Wholesale Marketer Facility 
Development Incentive Program Agreement 

Vol. 29, 4922–4928 

228 June 2007 Master Lease Agreement – Spirit SPE 
Portfolio and Superpumper, Inc. 

Vol. 29, 4929–4983 

229 Superpumper Inc 2008 Financial Statement 
(dated 12/31/2008) 

Vol. 29, 4984–4996 

230 November 9, 2009 email from P. Morabito to 
Bernstein, Yalaman RE: Jan Friederich – entered 
into Consulting Agreement 

Vol. 29, 4997 

231 September 30, 2010, Letter from Compass to 
Superpumper, Morabito, CWC RE: reducing face 
amount of the revolving note 

Vol. 29, 4998–5001 

232 October 15, 2010, letter from Quarles & Brady to 
Vacco RE: Revolving Loan Documents and Term 
Loan Documents between Superpumper and 
Compass Bank 

Vol. 29, 5002–5006 
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233 BMO Account Tracker Banking Report October 
1 to October 31, 2010  

Vol. 29, 5007–5013 

235 August 31, 2010 Superpumper Inc., Valuation of 
100 percent of the common equity in 
Superpumper, Inc on a controlling marketable 
basis 

Vol. 29, 5014–5059 

236 June 18, 2014 email from S. Morabito to Vanek 
(WF) RE: Analysis of Superpumper Acquisition 
in 2010 

Vol. 29, 5060–5061 

241 Superpumper March 2010 YTD Income 
Statement 

Vol. 29, 5062–5076 

244 Assignment Agreement for $939,000 Morabito 
Note 

Vol. 29, 5077–5079 

247 July 1, 2011 Third Amendment to Forbearance 
Agreement Superpumper and Compass Bank 

Vol. 29, 5080–5088 

248 Superpumper Cash Contributions January 2010 
thru September 2015 – Bayuk and S. Morabito 

Vol. 29, 5089–5096 

252 October 15, 2010 Letter from Quarles & Brady to 
Vacco RE: Revolving Loan documents and Term 
Loan documents between Superpumper Prop. and 
Compass Bank 

Vol. 29, 5097–5099 

254 Bank of America – S. Morabito SP Properties 
Sale, SP Purchase Balance 

Vol. 29, 5100 

255 Superpumper Prop. Final Closing Statement for 
920 Mountain City Hwy, Elko, NV 

Vol. 29, 5101 

256 September 30, 2010 Raffles Insurance Limited 
Member Summary 

Vol. 29, 5102 
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257 Equalization Spreadsheet Vol. 30, 5103 

258 November 9, 2005 Grant, Bargain and Sale Deed; 
Doc #3306300 for Property Washoe County 

Vol. 30, 5104–5105 

260 January 7, 2016 Budget Summary – Panorama 
Drive 

Vol. 30, 5106–5107 

261 Mary 22, 2006 Compilation of Quotes and 
Invoices Quote of Valley Drapery 

Vol. 30, 5108–5116 

262 Photos of 8355 Panorama Home Vol. 30, 5117–5151 

263 Water Rights Deed (Document #4190152) 
between P. Morabito, E. Bayuk, Grantors, RCA 
Trust One Grantee (recorded 12/31/2012) 

Vol. 30, 5152–5155 

265 October 1, 2010 Bank of America Wire Transfer 
–Bayuk – Morabito $60,117 

Vol. 30, 5156 

266 October 1, 2010 Check #2354 from Bayuk to P. 
Morabito for $29,383 for 8355 Panorama funding 

Vol. 30, 5157–5158 

268 October 1, 2010 Check #2356 from Bayuk to P. 
Morabito for $12,763 for 370 Los Olivos Funding 

Vol. 30, 5159–5160 

269 October 1, 2010 Check #2357 from Bayuk to P. 
Morabito for $31,284 for 371 El Camino Del Mar 
Funding 

Vol. 30, 5161–5162 

270 Bayuk Payment Ledger Support Documents 
Checks and Bank Statements 

Vol. 31, 5163–5352 

271 Bayuk Superpumper Contributions Vol. 31, 5353–5358 
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272 May 14, 2012 email string between P. Morabito, 
Vacco, Bayuk, and S. Bernstein RE: Info for 
Laguna purchase 

Vol. 31, 5359–5363 

276 September 21, 2010 Appraisal of 8355 Panorama 
Drive Reno, NV by Alves Appraisal 

Vol. 32, 5364–5400 

277 Assessor’s Map/Home Caparisons for 8355 
Panorama Drive, Reno, NV 

Vol. 32, 5401–5437 

278 December 3, 2007 Case Docket for CV07-02764 Vol. 32, 5438–5564 

280 May 25, 2011 Stipulation Regarding the 
Imposition of Punitive Damages; Case No. CV07-
02764 (filed 05/25/2011) 

Vol. 33, 5565–5570 

281 Work File for September 24, 2010 Appraisal of 
8355 Panorama Drive, Reno, NV 

Vol. 33, 5571–5628 

283 January 25, 2016 Expert Witness Report Leonard 
v. Superpumper Snowshoe 

Vol. 33, 5629–5652 

284 February 29, 2016 Defendants’ Rebuttal Expert 
Witness Disclosure 

Vol. 33, 5653–5666 

294 October 5, 2010 Lippes, Mathias Wexler 
Friedman, LLP, Invoices to P. Morabito 

Vol. 33, 5667–5680 

295 P. Morabito 2010 Tax Return (dated 10/16/2011) Vol. 33, 5681–5739 

296 December 31, 2010 Superpumper Inc. Note to 
Financial Statements 

Vol. 33, 5740–5743 

297 December 31, 2010 Superpumper Consultations Vol. 33, 5744 
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300 September 20, 2010 email chain between 
Yalmanchili and Graber RE: Attorney Client 
Privileged Communication 

Vol. 33, 5745–5748 

301 September 15, 2010 email from Vacco to P. 
Morabito RE: Tomorrow 

Vol. 33, 5749–5752 

303 Bankruptcy Court District of Nevada Claims 
Register Case No. 13-51237 

Vol. 33, 5753–5755 

304 April 14, 2018 email from Allen to Krausz RE: 
Superpumper 

Vol. 33, 5756–5757 

305 Subpoena in a Case Under the Bankruptcy Code 
to Robison, Sharp, Sullivan & Brust issued in 
Case No. BK-N-13-51237-GWZ 

Vol. 33, 5758–5768 

306 August 30, 2018 letter to Mark Weisenmiller, 
Esq., from Frank Gilmore, Esq.,  

Vol. 34, 5769 

307 Order Granting Motion to Compel Compliance 
with the Subpoena to Robison, Sharp, Sullivan & 
Brust filed in Case No. BK-N-13-51237-GWZ 

Vol. 34, 5770–5772 

308 Response of Robison, Sharp, Sullivan & Brust’s 
to Subpoena filed in Case No. BK-N-13-51237-
GWZ 

Vol. 34, 5773–5797 

309 Declaration of Frank C. Gilmore in support of 
Robison, Sharp, Sullivan & Brust’s Opposition to 
Motion for Order Holding Robison in Contempt 
filed in Case No. BK-N-13-51237-GWZ 

Vol. 34, 5798–5801 

Minutes of October 29, 2018, Non-Jury Trial, Day 1 (filed 
11/08/2018) 

Vol. 35, 5802–6041 

Transcript of October 29, 2018, Non-Jury Trial, Day 1 Vol. 35, 6042–6045 
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Minutes of October 30, 2018, Non-Jury Trial, Day 2 (filed 
11/08/2018) 

Vol. 36, 6046–6283 

Transcript of October 30, 2018, Non-Jury Trial, Day 2 Vol. 36, 6284–6286 

Minutes of October 31, 2018, Non-Jury Trial, Day 3 (filed 
11/08/2018) 

Vol. 37, 6287–6548 

Transcript of October 31, 2018, Non-Jury Trial, Day 3 Vol. 37, 6549–6552 

Minutes of November 1, 2018, Non-Jury Trial, Day 4 (filed 
11/08/2018) 

Vol. 38, 6553–6814 

Transcript of November 1, 2018, Non-Jury Trial, Day 4 Vol. 38, 6815–6817 

Minutes of November 2, 2018, Non-Jury Trial, Day 5 (filed 
11/08/2018) 

Vol. 39, 6818–7007 

Transcript of November 2, 2018, Non-Jury Trial, Day 5 Vol. 39, 7008–7011 

Minutes of November 5, 2018, Non-Jury Trial, Day 6 (filed 
11/08/2018) 

Vol. 40, 7012–7167 

Transcript of November 5, 2018, Non-Jury Trial, Day 6 Vol. 40, 7168–7169 

Minutes of November 6, 2018, Non-Jury Trial, Day 7 (filed 
11/08/2018) 

Vol. 41, 7170–7269 

Transcript of November 6, 2018, Non-Jury Trial, Day 7 Vol. 41, 7270–7272 
Vol. 42, 7273–7474 
 

Minutes of November 7, 2018, Non-Jury Trial, Day 8 (filed 
11/08/2018) 

Vol. 43, 7475–7476 

Transcript of November 7, 2018, Non-Jury Trial, Day 8 Vol. 43, 7477–7615 
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Minutes of November 26, 2018, Non-Jury Trial, Day 9 
(filed 11/26/2018) 

Vol. 44, 7616 

Transcript of November 26, 2018, Non-Jury Trial – Closing 
Arguments, Day 9 

Vol. 44, 7617–7666 
Vol. 45, 7667–7893 

Plaintiff’s Motion to Reopen Evidence (filed 01/30/2019) Vol. 46, 7894–7908 

Exhibits to Plaintiff’s Motion to Reopen Evidence  

Exhibit Document Description  

1 Declaration of Gabrielle A. Hamm, Esq. in 
Support of Plaintiff’s Motion to Reopen 

Vol. 46, 7909–7913 

1-A September 21, 2017 Declaration of Salvatore 
Morabito 

Vol. 46, 7914–7916 

1-B Defendants’ Proposed Findings of Fact, 
Conclusions of Law, and Judgment (Nov. 26, 
2018) 

Vol. 46, 7917–7957 

1-C Judgment on the First and Second Causes of 
Action; Case No. 15-05019-GWZ (Bankr. D. 
Nev.), ECF No. 123 (April 30, 2018) 

Vol. 46, 7958–7962 

1-D Amended Findings of Fact and Conclusions of 
Law in Support of Judgment Regarding Plaintiffs’ 
First and Second Causes of Action; Case No. 15-
05019-GWZ (Bankr. D. Nev.), ECF No. 126 
(April 30, 2018) 

Vol. 46, 7963–7994 

1-E Motion to Compel Compliance with the 
Subpoena to Robison Sharp Sullivan Brust; Case 
No. 15-05019-GWZ (Bankr. D. Nev.), ECF No. 
191 (Sept. 10, 2018) 

Vol. 46, 7995–8035 



Page 55 of 72 

DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION 

 

LOCATION 

1-F Order Granting Motion to Compel Compliance 
with the Subpoena to Robison Sharp Sullivan 
Brust; Case No. 15-05019-GWZ (Bankr. D. 
Nev.), ECF No. 229 (Jan. 3, 2019) 

Vol. 46, 8036–8039 

1-G Response of Robison, Sharp, Sullivan & Brust[] 
To Subpoena (including RSSB_000001 – 
RSSB_000031) (Jan. 18, 2019) 

Vol. 46, 8040–8067 

1-H Excerpts of Deposition Transcript of Sam 
Morabito as PMK of Snowshoe Petroleum, Inc. 
(Oct. 1, 2015) 

Vol. 46, 8068–8076 

Errata to: Plaintiff’s Motion to Reopen Evidence (filed 
01/30/2019) 

Vol. 47, 8077–8080 

Exhibit to Errata to: Plaintiff’s Motion to Reopen 
Evidence 

 

Exhibit Document Description  

1 Plaintiff’s Motion to Reopen Evidence  Vol. 47, 8081–8096 

Ex Parte Motion for Order Shortening Time on Plaintiff’s 
Motion to Reopen Evidence and for Expedited Hearing 
(filed 01/31/2019) 

Vol. 47, 8097–8102 

Order Shortening Time on Plaintiff’s Motion to Reopen 
Evidence and for Expedited Hearing (filed 02/04/2019) 

Vol. 47, 8103–8105 

Supplement to Plaintiff’s Motion to Reopen Evidence (filed 
02/04/2019) 

 

 

Vol. 47, 8106–8110 
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LOCATION 

Exhibits to Supplement to Plaintiff’s Motion to Reopen 
Evidence 

 

Exhibit Document Description  

1 Supplemental Declaration of Gabrielle A. Hamm, 
Esq. in Support of Plaintiff’s Motion to Reopen 
Evidence (filed 02/04/2019) 

Vol. 47, 8111–8113 

1-I Declaration of Frank C. Gilmore in Support of 
Robison, Sharp Sullivan & Brust’s Opposition to 
Motion for Order Holding Robison in Contempt; 
Case No. 15-05019-GWZ (Bankr. D. Nev.), ECF 
No. 259 (Jan. 30, 2019) 

Vol. 47, 8114–8128 

Defendants’ Response to Motion to Reopen Evidence 
(02/06/2019) 

Vol. 47, 8129–8135 

Plaintiff’s Reply to Defendants’ Response to Motion to 
Reopen Evidence (filed 02/07/2019) 

Vol. 47, 8136–8143 

Minutes of February 7, 2019 hearing on Motion to Reopen 
Evidence (filed 02/28/2019) 

Vol. 47, 8144 

Rough Draft Transcript of February 8, 2019 hearing on 
Motion to Reopen Evidence  

Vol. 47, 8145–8158 

[Plaintiff’s Proposed] Findings of Fact, Conclusions of 
Law, and Judgment (filed 03/06/2019) 

Vol. 47, 8159–8224 

[Defendants’ Proposed Amended] Findings of Fact, 
Conclusions of Law, and Judgment (filed 03/08/2019) 

Vol. 47, 8225–8268 

Minutes of February 26, 2019 hearing on Motion to 
Continue ongoing Non-Jury Trial (Telephonic) (filed 
03/11/2019) 

Vol. 47, 8269 
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LOCATION 

Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and Judgment (filed 
03/29/2019) 

Vol. 48, 8270–8333 

Notice of Entry of Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, 
and Judgment (filed 03/29/2019) 

Vol. 48, 8334–8340 

Memorandum of Costs and Disbursements (filed 
04/11/2019) 

Vol. 48, 8341–8347 

Exhibit to Memorandum of Costs and Disbursements  

Exhibit Document Description  

1 Ledger of Costs Vol. 48, 8348–8370 

Application for Attorneys’ Fees and Costs Pursuant to 
NRCP 68 (filed 04/12/2019) 

Vol. 48, 8371–8384 

Exhibits to Application for Attorneys’ Fees and Costs 
Pursuant to NRCP 68 

 

Exhibit Document Description  

1 Declaration of Teresa M. Pilatowicz In Support of 
Plaintiff’s Application for Attorney’s Fees and 
Costs Pursuant to NRCP 68 (filed 04/12/2019) 

Vol. 48, 8385–8390 

2 Plaintiff’s Offer of Judgment to Defendants 
(dated 05/31/2016) 

Vol. 48, 8391–8397 

3 Defendant’s Rejection of Offer of Judgment by 
Plaintiff (dated 06/15/2016) 

Vol. 48, 8398–8399 

4 Log of time entries from June 1, 2016 to March 
28, 2019 

Vol. 48, 8400–8456 



Page 58 of 72 

DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION 

 

LOCATION 

5 Plaintiff’s Memorandum of Costs and 
Disbursements (filed 04/11/2019)  

Vol. 48, 8457–8487 

Motion to Retax Costs (filed 04/15/2019) Vol. 49, 8488–8495 

Plaintiff’s Opposition to Motion to Retax Costs (filed 
04/17/2019) 

Vol. 49, 8496–8507 

Exhibits to Plaintiff’s Opposition to Motion to Retax 
Costs 

 

Exhibit Document Description  

1 Declaration of Teresa M. Pilatowicz In Support of 
Opposition to Motion to Retax Costs (filed 
04/17/2019) 

Vol. 49, 8508–8510 

2 Summary of Photocopy Charges  Vol. 49, 8511–8523 

3 James L. McGovern Curriculum Vitae Vol. 49, 8524–8530 

4 McGovern & Greene LLP Invoices Vol. 49, 8531–8552 

5 Buss-Shelger Associates Invoices  Vol. 49, 8553–8555 

Reply in Support of Motion to Retax Costs (filed 
04/22/2019) 

Vol. 49, 8556–8562 

Opposition to Application for Attorneys’ Fees and Costs 
Pursuant to NRCP 68 (filed 04/25/2019) 

Vol. 49, 8563–8578 

Exhibit to Opposition to Application for Attorneys’ Fees 
and Costs Pursuant to NRCP 68 

 

Exhibit Document Description  

1 Plaintiff’s Bill Dispute Ledger Vol. 49, 8579–8637 
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LOCATION 

Defendants, Salvatore Morabito, Snowshoe Petroleum, 
Inc., and Superpumper, Inc.’s Motion for New Trial and/or 
to Alter or Amend Judgment Pursuant to NRCP 52, 59, and 
60 (filed 04/25/2019) 

Vol. 49, 8638–8657 

Defendant, Edward Bayuk’s Motion for New Trial and/or 
to Alter or Amend Judgment Pursuant to NRCP 52, 59, and 
60 (filed 04/26/2019) 

Vol. 50, 8658–8676 

Exhibits to Edward Bayuk’s Motion for New Trial 
and/or to Alter or Amend Judgment Pursuant to NRCP 
52, 59, and 60 

 

Exhibit Document Description  

1 February 27, 2019 email with attachments Vol. 50, 8677–8768 

2 Declaration of Frank C. Gilmore in Support of 
Edward Bayuk’s Motion for New Trial (filed 
04/26/2019) 

Vol. 50, 8769–8771 

3 February 27, 2019 email from Marcy Trabert Vol. 50, 8772–8775 

4 February 27, 2019 email from Frank Gilmore to 
eturner@Gtg.legal RE: Friday Trial  

Vol. 50, 8776–8777 

Plaintiff’s Reply in Support of Application of Attorneys’ 
Fees and Costs Pursuant to NRCP 68 (filed 04/30/2019)  

Vol. 50, 8778–8790 

Exhibit to Plaintiff’s Reply in Support of Application of 
Attorneys’ Fees and Costs Pursuant to NRCP 68 

 

Exhibit Document Description  

1 Case No. BK-13-51237-GWZ, ECF Nos. 280, 
282, and 321 

Vol. 50, 8791–8835 

mailto:eturner@Gtg.legal
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LOCATION 

Plaintiff’s Opposition to Defendants’ Motions for New 
Trial and/or to Alter or Amend Judgment (filed 05/07/2019) 

Vol. 51, 8836–8858 

Defendants, Salvatore Morabito, Snowshoe Petroleum, 
Inc., and Superpumper, Inc.’s Reply in Support of Motion 
for New Trial and/or to Alter or Amend Judgment Pursuant 
to NRCP 52, 59, and 60 (filed 05/14/2019) 

Vol. 51, 8859–8864 

Declaration of Edward Bayuk Claiming Exemption from 
Execution (filed 06/28/2019)  

Vol. 51, 8865–8870 

Exhibits to Declaration of Edward Bayuk Claiming 
Exemption from Execution 

 

Exhibit Document Description  

1 Copy of June 22, 2019 Notice of Execution and 
two Write of Executions  

Vol. 51, 8871–8896 

2 Declaration of James Arthur Gibbons Regarding 
his Attestation, Witness and Certification on 
November 12, 2005 of the Spendthrift Trust 
Amendment to the Edward William Bayuk Living 
Trust (dated 06/25/2019) 

Vol. 51, 8897–8942 

Notice of Claim of Exemption from Execution (filed 
06/28/2019) 

Vol. 51, 8943–8949 

Edward Bayuk’s Declaration of Salvatore Morabito 
Claiming Exemption from Execution (filed 07/02/2019) 

Vol. 51, 8950–8954 

Exhibits to Declaration of Salvatore Morabito Claiming 
Exemption from Execution 

 

Exhibit Document Description  

1 Las Vegas June 22, 2019 letter Vol. 51, 8955–8956 
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LOCATION 

2 Writs of execution and the notice of execution  Vol. 51, 8957–8970 

Minutes of June 24, 2019 telephonic hearing on Decision on 
Submitted Motions (filed 07/02/2019) 

Vol. 51, 8971–8972 

Salvatore Morabito’s Notice of Claim of Exemption from 
Execution (filed 07/02/2019) 

Vol. 51, 8973–8976 

Edward Bayuk’s Third Party Claim to Property Levied 
Upon NRS 31.070 (filed 07/03/2019) 

Vol. 51, 8977–8982 

Order Granting Plaintiff’s Application for an Award of 
Attorneys’ Fees and Costs Pursuant to NRCP 68 (filed 
07/10/2019) 

Vol. 51, 8983–8985 

Order Granting in part and Denying in part Motion to Retax 
Costs (filed 07/10/2019) 

Vol. 51, 8986–8988 

Plaintiff’s Objection to (1) Claim of Exemption from 
Execution and (2) Third Party Claim to Property Levied 
Upon, and Request for Hearing Pursuant to NRS 21.112 and 
31.070(5) (filed 07/11/2019) 

Vol. 52, 8989–9003 

Exhibits to Plaintiff’s Objection to (1) Claim of 
Exemption from Execution and (2) Third Party Claim 
to Property Levied Upon, and Request for Hearing 
Pursuant to NRS 21.112 and 31.070(5) 

 

Exhibit Document Description  

1 Declaration of Gabrielle A. Hamm, Esq. Vol. 52, 9004–9007 

2 11/30/2011 Tolling Agreement – Edward Bayuk Vol. 52, 9008–9023 

3 11/30/2011 Tolling Agreement – Edward William 
Bayuk Living Trust 

Vol. 52, 9024–9035 
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LOCATION 

4 Excerpts of 9/28/2015 Deposition of Edward 
Bayuk 

Vol. 52, 9036–9041 

5 Edward Bayuk, as Trustee of the Edward William 
Bayuk Living Trust’s Responses to Plaintiff’s 
First Set of Requests for Production, served 
9/24/2015 

Vol. 52, 9042–9051 

6 8/26/2009 Grant Deed (Los Olivos) Vol. 52, 9052–9056 

7 8/17/2018 Grant Deed (El Camino) Vol. 52, 9057–9062 

8 Trial Ex. 4 (Confession of Judgment) Vol. 52, 9063–9088 

9 Trial Ex. 45 (Purchase and Sale Agreement, dated 
9/28/2010) 

Vol. 52, 9089–9097 

10 Trial Ex. 46 (First Amendment to Purchase and 
Sale Agreement, dated 9/29/2010) 

Vol. 52, 9098–9100 

11 Trial Ex. 51 (Los Olivos Grant Deed recorded 
10/8/2010) 

Vol. 52, 9101–9103 

12 Trial Ex. 52 (El Camino Grant Deed recorded 
10/8/2010) 

Vol. 52, 9104–9106 

13 Trial Ex. 61 (Membership Interest Transfer 
Agreement, dated 10/1/2010) 

Vol. 52, 9107–9114 

14 Trial Ex. 62 ($1,617,050.00 Promissory Note) Vol. 52, 9115–9118 

15 Trial Ex. 65 (Mary Fleming Grant Deed recorded 
11/4/2010) 

Vol. 52, 9119–9121 

Notice of Entry of Order Denying Defendants’ Motions for 
New Trial and/or to Alter or Amend Judgment (filed 
07/16/2019) 

Vol. 52, 9122–9124 
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LOCATION 

Exhibit to Notice of Entry of Order Denying 
Defendants’ Motions for New Trial and/or to Alter or 
Amend Judgment 

 

Exhibit Document Description  

1 Order Denying Defendants’ Motions for New 
Trial and/or to Alter or Amend Judgment (filed 
07/10/2019) 

Vol. 52, 9125–9127 

Notice of Entry of Order Granting Plaintiff’s Application 
for an Award of Attorneys’ Fees and Costs Pursuant to 
NRCP 68 (filed 07/16/2019) 

Vol. 52, 9128–9130 

Exhibit to Notice of Entry of Order Granting Plaintiff’s 
Application for an Award of Attorneys’ Fees and Costs 
Pursuant to NRCP 68 

 

Exhibit Document Description  

1 Order Granting Plaintiff’s Application for an 
Award of Attorneys’ Fees and Costs Pursuant to 
NRCP 68 (filed 07/10/2019) 

Vol. 52, 9131–9134 

Notice of Entry of Order Granting in Part and Denying in 
Part Motion to Retax Costs (filed 07/16/2019) 

Vol. 52, 9135–9137 

Exhibit to Notice of Entry of Order Granting in Part and 
Denying in Part Motion to Retax Costs 

 

Exhibit Document Description  

1 Order Granting in Part and Denying in Part 
Motion to Retax Costs (filed 07/10/2019) 

Vol. 52, 9138–9141 
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LOCATION 

Plaintiff’s Objection to Notice of Claim of Exemption from 
Execution Filed by Salvatore Morabito and Request for 
Hearing (filed 07/16/2019) 

Vol. 52, 9142–9146 

Reply to Objection to Claim of Exemption and Third Party 
Claim to Property Levied Upon (filed 07/17/2019) 

Vol. 52, 9147–9162 

Exhibits to Reply to Objection to Claim of Exemption 
and Third Party Claim to Property Levied Upon 

 

Exhibit Document Description  

1 March 3, 2011 Deposition Transcript of P. 
Morabito 

Vol. 52, 9163–9174 

2 Mr. Bayuk’s September 23, 2014 responses to 
Plaintiff’s first set of requests for production  

Vol. 52, 9175–9180 

3 September 28, 2015 Deposition Transcript of 
Edward Bayuk 

Vol. 52, 9181–9190 

Reply to Plaintiff’s Objection to Notice of Claim of 
Exemption from Execution (filed 07/18/2019) 

Vol. 52, 9191–9194 

Declaration of Service of Till Tap, Notice of Attachment 
and Levy Upon Property (filed 07/29/2019) 

Vol. 52, 9195 

Notice of Submission of Disputed Order Denying Claim of 
Exemption and Third Party Claim (filed 08/01/2019) 

Vol. 52, 9196–9199 

Exhibits to Notice of Submission of Disputed Order 
Denying Claim of Exemption and Third Party Claim 

 

Exhibit Document Description  

1 Plaintiff’s Proposed Order Denying Claim of 
Exemption and Third-Party Claim 

Vol. 52, 9200–9204 
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LOCATION 

2 Bayuk and the Bayuk Trust’s proposed Order 
Denying Claim of Exemption and Third-Party 
Claim 

Vol. 52, 9205–9210 

3 July 30, 2019 email evidencing Bayuk, through 
counsel Jeffrey Hartman, Esq., requesting until 
noon on July 31, 2019 to provide comments. 

Vol. 52, 9211–9212 

4 July 31, 2019 email from Teresa M. Pilatowicz, 
Esq. Bayuk failed to provide comments at noon 
on July 31, 2019, instead waiting until 1:43 p.m. 
to send a redline version with proposed changes 
after multiple follow ups from Plaintiff’s counsel 
on July 31, 2019 

Vol. 52, 9213–9219 

5 A true and correct copy of the original Order and 
Bayuk Changes 

Vol. 52, 9220–9224 

6 A true and correct copy of the redline run by 
Plaintiff accurately reflecting Bayuk’s proposed 
changes 

Vol. 52, 9225–9229 

7 Email evidencing that after review of the 
proposed revisions, Plaintiff advised Bayuk, 
through counsel, that Plaintiff agree to certain 
proposed revisions, but the majority of the 
changes were unacceptable as they did not reflect 
the Court’s findings or evidence before the Court. 

Vol. 52, 9230–9236 

Objection to Plaintiff’s Proposed Order Denying Claim of 
Exemption and Third Party Claim (filed 08/01/2019) 

 

 

Vol. 53, 9237–9240 
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LOCATION 

Exhibits to Objection to Plaintiff’s Proposed Order 
Denying Claim of Exemption and Third-Party Claim 

 

Exhibit Document Description  

1 Plaintiff’s Proposed Order Denying Claim of 
Exemption and Third-Party Claim  

Vol. 53, 9241–9245 

2 Defendant’s comments on Findings of Fact Vol. 53, 9246–9247 

3 Defendant’s Proposed Order Denying Claim of 
Exemption and Third-Party Claim 

Vol. 53, 9248–9252 

Minutes of July 22, 2019 hearing on Objection to Claim for 
Exemption (filed 08/02/2019) 

Vol. 53, 9253 

Order Denying Claim of Exemption (filed 08/02/2019) Vol. 53, 9254–9255 

Bayuk’s Case Appeal Statement (filed 08/05/2019) Vol. 53, 9256–9260 

Bayuk’s Notice of Appeal (filed 08/05/2019) Vol. 53, 9261–9263 

Defendants, Superpumper, Inc., Edward Bayuk, Salvatore 
Morabito; and Snowshoe Petroleum, Inc.’s, Case Appeal 
Statement (filed 08/05/2019) 

Vol. 53, 9264–9269 

Defendants, Superpumper, Inc., Edward Bayuk, Salvatore 
Morabito; and Snowshoe Petroleum, Inc.’s, Notice of 
Appeal (filed 08/05/2019) 

 

 

 

Vol. 53, 9270–9273 
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LOCATION 

Exhibits to Defendants, Superpumper, Inc., Edward 
Bayuk, Salvatore Morabito; and Snowshoe Petroleum, 
Inc.’s, Notice of Appeal 

 

Exhibit Document Description  

1 Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and 
Judgment (filed 03/29/2019) 

Vol. 53, 9274–9338 

2 Order Denying Defendants’ Motions for New 
Trial and/or to Alter or Amend Judgment (filed 
07/10/2019) 

Vol. 53, 9339–9341 

3 Order Granting in Part and Denying in Part 
Motion to Retax Costs (filed 07/10/2019) 

Vol. 53, 9342–9345 

4 Order Granting Plaintiff’s Application for an 
Award of Attorneys’ Fees and Costs Pursuant to 
NRCP 68 (filed 07/10/2019) 

Vol. 53, 9346–9349 

Plaintiff’s Reply to Defendants’ Objection to Plaintiff’s 
Proposed Order Denying Claim of Exemption and Third-
Party Claim 

Vol. 53, 9350–9356 

Order Denying Claim of Exemption and Third-Party Claim 
(08/09/2019) 

Vol. 53, 9357–9360 

Notice of Entry of Order Denying Claim of Exemption and 
Third-Party Claim (filed 08/09/2019) 

Vol. 53, 9361–9364 

Exhibit to Notice of Entry of Order Denying Claim of 
Exemption and Third-Party Claim  

 

Exhibit Document Description  

1 Order Denying Claim of Exemption and Third-
Party Claim (08/09/2019) 

Vol. 53, 9365–9369 
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LOCATION 

Notice of Entry of Order Denying Claim of Exemption 
(filed 08/12/2019) 

Vol. 53, 9370–9373 

Exhibit to Notice of Entry of Order Denying Claim of 
Exemption 

 

Exhibit Document Description  

1 Order Denying Claim of Exemption (08/02/2019) Vol. 53, 9374–9376 

Motion to Make Amended or Additional Findings Under 
NRCP 52(b), or, in the Alternative, Motion for 
Reconsideration (filed 08/19/2019) 

Vol. 54, 9377–9401 

Exhibits to Motion to Make Amended or Additional 
Findings Under NRCP 52(b), or, in the Alternative, 
Motion for Reconsideration 

 

Exhibit Document Description  

1 Order Denying Claim of Exemption and Third 
Party Claim (filed 08/09/19) 

Vol. 54, 9402–9406 

2 Spendthrift Trust Amendment to the Edward 
William Bayuk Living Trust (dated 11/12/05) 

Vol. 54, 9407–9447 

3 Spendthrift Trust Agreement for the Arcadia 
Living Trust (dated 10/14/05) 

Vol. 54, 9448–9484 

4 Fifth Amendment and Restatement of the Trust 
Agreement for the Arcadia Living Trust (dated 
09/30/10) 

Vol. 54, 9485–9524 

5 P. Morabito's Supplement to NRCP 16.1 
Disclosures (dated 03/01/11) 

Vol. 54, 9525–9529 
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LOCATION 

6 Transcript of March 3, 2011 Deposition of P. 
Morabito 

Vol. 55, 9530–9765 

7 Documents Conveying Real Property Vol. 56, 9766–9774 

8 Transcript of July 22, 2019 Hearing Vol. 56, 9775–9835 

9 Tolling Agreement JH and P. Morabito (partially 
executed 11/30/11) 

Vol. 56, 9836–9840 

10 Tolling Agreement JH and Arcadia Living Trust 
(partially executed 11/30/11) 

Vol. 56, 9841–9845 

11 Excerpted Pages 8–9 of Superpumper Judgment 
(filed 03/29/19) 

Vol. 56, 9846–9848 

12 Petitioners' First Set of Interrogatories to Debtor 
(dated 08/13/13) 

Vol. 56, 9849–9853 

13 Tolling Agreement JH and Edward Bayuk 
(partially executed 11/30/11) 

Vol. 56, 9854–9858 

14 Tolling Agreement JH and Bayuk Trust (partially 
executed 11/30/11) 

Vol. 56, 9859–9863 

15 Declaration of Mark E. Lehman, Esq. (dated 
03/21/11) 

Vol. 56, 9864–9867 

16 Excerpted Transcript of October 20, 2015 
Deposition of Dennis C. Vacco 

Vol. 56, 9868–9871 

17 Assignment and Assumption Agreement (dated 
07/03/07) 

Vol. 56, 9872–9887 

18 Order Denying Morabito’s Claim of Exemption 
(filed 08/02/19) 

Vol. 56, 9888–9890 
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Errata to Motion to Make Amended or Additional Findings 
Under NRCP 52(b), or, in the Alternative, Motion for 
Reconsideration (filed 08/20/2019) 

Vol. 57, 9891–9893 

Plaintiff’s Opposition to Motion to Make Amended or 
Additional Findings Under NRCP 52(b), or, In the 
Alternative, Motion for Reconsideration, and 
Countermotion for Fees and Costs Pursuant to NRS 7.085 
(filed 08/30/2019) 

Vol. 57, 9894–9910 

Errata to Plaintiff’s Opposition to Motion to Make 
Amended or Additional Findings Under NRCP 52(b), or, In 
the Alternative, Motion for Reconsideration, and 
Countermotion for Fees and Costs Pursuant to NRS 7.085 
(filed 08/30/2019) 

Vol. 57, 9911–9914 

Exhibits to Errata to Plaintiff’s Opposition to Motion to 
Make Amended or Additional Findings Under NRCP 
52(b), or, In the Alternative, Motion for 
Reconsideration, and Countermotion for Fees and Costs 
Pursuant to NRS 7.085 

 

Exhibit Document Description  

1 Declaration of Gabrielle A. Hamm, Esq. Vol. 57, 9915–9918 

2 Plaintiff’s Amended NRCP 16.1 Disclosures 
(February 19, 2016) 

Vol. 57, 9919–9926 

3 Plaintiff’s Fourth Supplemental NRCP 16.1 
Disclosures (November 15, 2016) 

Vol. 57, 9927–9930 

4 Plaintiff’s Fifth Supplemental NRCP 16.1 
Disclosures (December 21, 2016) 

Vol. 57, 9931–9934 

5 Plaintiff’s Sixth Supplemental NRCP 16.1 
Disclosures (March 20, 2017) 

Vol. 57, 9935–9938 
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LOCATION 

Reply in Support of Motion to Make Amended or 
Additional Findings Under NRCP 52(b), or, In the 
Alternative, Motion for Reconsideration, and 
Countermotion for Fees and Costs (filed 09/04/2019) 

Vol. 57, 9939–9951 

Exhibits to Reply in Support of Motion to Make 
Amended or Additional Findings Under NRCP 52(b), 
or, In the Alternative, Motion for Reconsideration, and 
Countermotion for Fees and Costs 

 

Exhibit Document Description  

19 Notice of Submission of Disputed Order Denying 
Claim of Exemption and Third Party Claim (filed 
08/01/19) 

Vol. 57, 9952–9993 

20 Notice of Submission of Disputed Order Denying 
Claim of Exemption and Third Party Claim (filed 
08/01/19) 

Vol. 57,  
9994–10010 

Order Denying Defendants’ Motion to Make Amended or 
Additional Findings Under NRCP 52(b), or, in the 
Alternative, Motion for Reconsideration and Denying 
Plaintiff's Countermotion for Fees and Costs Pursuant to 
NRS 7.085 (filed 11/08/2019) 

Vol. 57,  
10011–10019 

Bayuk’s Case Appeal Statement (filed 12/06/2019) Vol. 57,  
10020–10026 

Bayuk’s Notice of Appeal (filed 12/06/2019) Vol. 57, 
10027–10030 
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Exhibits to Bayuk’s Notice of Appeal  

Exhibit Document Description  

1 Order Denying [Morabito’s] Claim of Exemption 
(filed 08/02/19) 

Vol. 57,  
10031–10033 

2 Order Denying [Bayuk’s] Claim of Exemption 
and Third Party Claim (filed 08/09/19) 

Vol. 57,  
10034–10038 

3 Order Denying Defendants’ Motion to Make 
Amended or Additional Findings Under NRCP 
52(b), or, in the Alternative, Motion for 
Reconsideration and Denying Plaintiff’s 
Countermotion for Fees and Costs Pursuant to 
NRS 7.085 (filed 11/08/19) 

Vol. 57,  
10039–10048 

Notice of Entry of Order Denying Defendants' Motion to 
Make Amended or Additional Findings Under NRCP 52(b), 
or, in the Alternative, Motion for Reconsideration and 
Denying Plaintiff's Countermotion for Fees and Costs 
Pursuant to NRS 7.085 (filed 12/23/2019) 

Vol. 57, 
10049–10052 

Exhibit to Notice of Entry of Order  

Exhibit Document Description  

A Order Denying Defendants’ Motion to Make 
Amended or Additional Findings Under NRCP 
52(b), or, in the Alternative, Motion for 
Reconsideration and Denying Plaintiff’s 
Countermotion for Fees and Costs Pursuant to 
NRS 7.085 (filed 11/08/19) 

Vol. 57, 
10053–10062 

Docket Case No. CV13-02663 Vol. 57,  
10063–10111 
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Electronically
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Howard W. Conyers

Clerk of the Court

Transaction # 17759801960

JOHN P. DESMOND, ESQ.

Nevada State Bar No. 5618
BRIAN R. IRVINE, ESQ.

Nevada State Bar No. 7758
JUSTIN J. BUSTOS, ESQ.

Nevada State Bar No. 10320
JONES VARGAS

100 West Liberty Street, 12th Floor

P.O. Box 281

Reno, Nevada 89504-0281

Telephone: (775) 786-5000

Facsimile: (775) 786-1177

Attormysfor Defendants/Counter-Claimants

IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE

CONSOLIDATED NEVADA CORP., et al.,

Plaintiffs,

vs.

JH,INC.,etal.,

Defendants.

CASE NO. CV07-02764

DEPT.NO. 6

MEMORANDUM AND ORDER

JH, INC., et al.,

Counter-Claimants,

vs.

CONSOLIDATED NEVADA CORP., et al.,

Counter-Defendants.

FINDINGS OF FACT. CONCLUSIONS OF LAW. AND JUDGMENT

In accordance with WDCR 9, following a non-jury trial in the above-captioned matter, and

review of the record and pleadings filed by the parties, the Court renders the following Findings of

Fact, Conclusions of Law, Decision, and Judgment.
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FINDINGS OF FACT

1. Berry-Hinckley Industries ("BHI") began operations in 1928 when Wayne

Hinckley and Lawrence Semenza assumed the lease of the Flying A Service Station on Second

and West Streets in Reno, Nevada. (Sept. 13,2010, Transcript ofJudge's Ruling at 4:2-7.)

2. In the late 1970s, Art Hinckley, Ward Hinckley's son, joined the business

supervising the administrative staff of three employees. Id. at 4:9-11.

3. BHI was very successful for generations. Id. at 4:11-12.

4. The Stock of BHI was purchased on October 14, 2005, by P.A. Morabito & Co.

("PAMCO"), a company owned by Mr. Morabito, for approximately $95 million. Id. at 4:12-14.

5. Paul Morabito, the controlling owner of PAMCO, was appointed president and

CEO. Mat4:14-16.

6. All real properties owned by BHI, and by related entities as operated by BHI, were

separately sold to PAMCO, which properties were then sold to third parties. Id. at 4:16-18.

7. As part of these sales, new leases were entered into with BHI as the lessee and the

leases were at above-market rates. Id. at 4:19-21.

8. JH, Inc. ("JH"), owned by Jerry Herbst, was formed for the purpose of acquiring

BHI. Id. at 4:21-23.

9. JH is a related party to Terrible Herbst, Inc. and to the Herbst family, who have

decades of experience operating gas stations and convenience stores and, in recent years, some

experience in the gaming industry. Id. at 4:23-5:3.

10. By no later than December 31,2008, BHI had zero value. Id. at 5:4-5.

11. Although not essential to the outcome of this case, the story of how BHI lost all

value is contained in the long record ofthese proceedings. Id. at 5:5-7.

12. The agreement between the parties is titled the Amended and Restated Stock

Purchase Agreement ("ARSPA") and is dated June 28, 2007. Id. at 5:7-10.

13. The substance of the agreement consists of two components. Id. at 5:11 -12.
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14. First, the transaction consisted of the Development Sites. Id. at 12-13. The

Development Sites are ten parcels of real property that were partially improved or would be

improved to create convenience stores and gas stations. Id. at 5:13-19.

15. The primary assets in the second category were the operating convenience stores

and gas stations. Id. at 5:17-19.

16. This transaction entailed a very extensive review of the financial documents by

representatives of the buyer including certified public accountants and people with an expertise in

obtaining commercial financing. Id. at 12:6-13. Defendants also had their own experience and

expertise in the industry upon which they relied. Id. at 12:14-15. Defendants could and did fly to

Reno. Id. at 12:15. Defendants could and did physically see the properties. Id. at 12:15-16.

Defendants could and did talk to Mr. Hinckley about his experience with BHI. Id. at 12:16-17.

Thus, it is understandable that, for the most part, the ARSPA places the responsibility on the buyer

to rely on their own investigation of the company and gives them the prerogative of buying the

company or not buying the company. Id. at 12:17-21,

17. Expert witnesses David Wood, Craig Greene, Claudia Berglund and Heather Tryon

did a magnificent job in attempting to translate accounting terms for the Court so that the Court

would have an understanding of the significance of their testimony. Id. at 13:8-13.

18. The finder-of-fact, who is untutored in accounting, cannot function as an auditor,

and must rely on expert witness testimony for an understanding of the many financial issues in this

case. Id. at 13:14-15.

A. Development Sites

19. Section 2.8(c) of the ARSPA obligates the seller to enter into a construction

management agreement with the buyer and that agreement is attached as Exhibit E to the ARSPA.

Id. at 5:24-6:3.

20. The Construction Management Agreement ("CMA") provides that, in consideration

for the purchase of the Development Sites by owner, the construction manager, which is Washoe

Construction Management Services, LLC ("WCM"), a company created and owned by Mr.

Morabito, has agreed to act as the construction manager for the project. Id. at 6:9-14.
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21. In other words, Mr. Morabito's company agreed to act as construction manager for

this project in consideration for the purchase of the Development Sites by JH. Id. at 6:15-17.

22. A few pertinent provisions of the CMA are as follows:

a. Article 1 provides, "[t]he Construction Manager will assist the Owner with the

management of the Project, including monitoring Project costs, endeavoring to

keep costs within the fixed sum contracts entered into by and between Owner and

Dennis Banks Construction (the "Contractor") for certain of the Development Sites

and within the budgets developed by Owner and the Construction Manager for the

balance of the Development Sites for which the Owner will have entered into Cost,

Plus Contracts with the Contractor, . . . and working with the Contractor to

schedule the work of the Project efficiently so that the Project will be ready for

occupancy on the dates set forth in the Construction Contracts." Id. at 6:18-7:5.

b. Article 2.1 provides, "[t]he Construction Manager will review all plans and

specifications and advise on systems and materials, construction feasibility, time

requirements for procurement, installation and construction, relative costs, and

provide recommendations for economies as appropriate. The Construction

Manager is hereby authorized to act as the Owner's agent in dealing with the

Architect, the Construction Contracts, subcontractors and their respective

employees and agents." Id. at 7:6-14.

c. Paragraph 2.3 provides, in part, "[t]he Construction Manager will work with the

Contractor to assure completion of the Project within the time periods set forth in

the Construction Contracts.. In the event any change order or other adjustment is

requested by Owner to be made to any Construction Contract, Construction

manager will work with the Contractor to assure proper inclusion of such change

order or other adjustment into the Project. " Id. at 7:15-21.

23. Pursuant to paragraph 3.2, the relevant terms and conditions of the ARSPA are

incorporated in the CMA. Id. at 7:22-23.

Page 4 of 15

1834



ti1'

I

i

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

J12

1 14

1 15

I 16

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

24. The Court was impressed by the testimony of Doug Browne. Id. at 7:24-8:1. Mr.

Browne is a graduate in mathematics from the University of Notre Dame. Id. at 8:1-2. Mr.

Browne was in the United States Marine Corps. Id. at 8:2-3. He was involved in construction

engineering and management for a substantial period of time including at Q&D Construction

Company. Id. at 8:4-6.

25. Mr. Browne described generally the role of the construction manager. Id. at 8:6-8.

Essentially, the role of the construction manager is to be the owner's representative to ensure that

both the schedule of the construction project and its costs adhere to the budget and timeline for

construction. Id. at 8:10-13. The construction manager asks questions and looks at the long-term

items of a contract. Id. at 8:13-15. The construction manager works directly with subcontractors,

taking bids, evaluating the costs of various components ofthe construction, creating a construction

timeline, and making, at a minimum, monthly reports to the owner so the owner is advised

consistently of the milestones of construction. Id. at 8:15-20. A good construction manager

facilitates the process and ensures proper and responsible accounting of the owner's money on the

project. Id. at 8:21-23.

26. In Mr. Browne's experience, the construction manager is usually involved in the

construction on a daily basis and frequently visits the construction site. Id. at 8:23-9:1. A

construction manager should review the construction schedule with the contractor and meet with

the contractor on a weekly basis. Id. at 9:1 -3.

27. Mr. Browne opined that WCM and Mr. Morabito performed none of the services

contemplated by the CMA. Id. at 9:4-7.

28. Mr. Morabito made it absolutely plain that in his view, the only purpose of the

CMA was for him to get paid. Id. at 9:7-9. Mr. Morabito actually said, "What does the

management of the construction sites mean? I have no idea what that means." Id. at 9:10-13.

29. The only other people involved in WCM were Garrett Gordon, Phil Tripoli and

Alfredo Alonso. Id. at 9:14-10:13.

30. Mr. Gordon is an attorney with the law firm of Lewis and Roca in Reno, Nevada.

Id. at 9:15-17. Mr. Gordon made it plain that he does not have any competence in
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construction supervision. Id. at 9:17-19. Mr. Gordon testified that he was called every day by Mr.

Morabito, who wanted to know the status of the building permits so that Mr. Morabito could get

his money. Id. at 9:10-22. Mr. Gordon's job was to secure Mr. Morabito's money by getting

building permits or certificates of occupancy. Id. at 9:22-24.

31. Mr. Alonso, although not a lawyer, is also associated with the law firm of Lewis

and Roca and played the same role as Mr. Gordon. Id. at 10:1-4.

32. The third person involved with WCM was Mr. Tripoli. Id. at 10:5. It is ludicrous

to think that Mr. Tripoli has any capacity to, or did in any significant way, supervise this project.

Id. at 10:7-9. Mr. Tripoli testified that he did not communicate at all with the owner ofthe project.

Id. at 10:9-11.

33. In the words of Mr. Browne, Mr. Morabito was not managing the construction

project, he was managing his money. Id. at 10:11-13.

B. Working Capital

34. Clear and convincing evidence shows that there was no basis whatsoever for the

contents of the working capital estimate other than Mr. Morabito's decision to create it. Id. at

16:8-11.

35. There is not one piece of paper that has been produced in over 5,500 exhibits in this

trial, to the Independent Accountants, during discovery or anywhere else, to support the

exaggerated value of the company as set forth in the working capital estimate. Id. at 16:23-17:3.

36. The major difference between Mr. Morabito's estimate and the actual working

capital is accounts payable. Id. at 17:3-4. This fact is significant. Id. at 17:15.

37. The Court is very impressed with the testimony of Paula Meyer. Id. at 17:5-7. Ms.

Meyer worked for BHI since approximately 1995. Id. at 17-7-8. She worked for years under the

direction of Mr. Hinckley, who impressed the Court as an honest and fine business person. Id. at

17:8-10. Ms. Meyer is also a CPA and was the CFO of BHI. Id. at 17:10-11. Ms. Meyer

graduated from the University of Nevada, Reno and was an accountant at Grant, Thornton. Id. at

17:11-12.

38. Mr. Morabito did not prepare the monthly financial statements, /of. at 17:15-17.
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39. There is no evidence that the monthly financial statements were inaccurate. Id.

at 17:16-19.

40. Mr. Morabito did not have access to the accounting system of the company. Id. at

17:19-21.

41. Ms. Meyer informed Mr. Morabito that the leases were not being "flipped" from

capital leases to operating leases. Id. at 17:21-23.

42. Mr. Morabito had no ability, due to his lack of access to the financial accounting

system, to change the financial statements. Id. at 17:24-18:2.

43. In the course of events leading to the closing of this transaction, there was a point

where Mr. Morabito wanted Ms. Meyer to communicate only with him and not the lawyers or

BCC. Id. at 18:2-5. This is a small fact, but it is an unusual fact. Id. at 18:6-7. This is a complex

transaction involving tens of millions of dollars. Id. at 18:7-9. As the CFO, Ms. Meyer had access

to the financial statements of the company while the CEO of the company, Mr. Morabito, did not

have such access. Id. at 18:11-13. Nevertheless, Mr. Morabito instructed Ms. Meyer to only

communicate with him. Id. at 18:13-14. Thus, the buyer was deprived of access to Ms. Meyer

(who knew the true financial condition of the company) and had to rely exclusively on the false

working capital estimate prepared by Mr. Morabito.

44. Ms. Meyer testified that she did not know what happened to information once it

went to Mr. Morabito. Id. at 18:15-17. Mr. Morabito handled the majority ofthe information. Id.

at 18:17-18.

45. Ms. Meyer's testimony regarding her constant disputes and disagreements with Paul

Morabito about the accounts payable was very moving. Id. at 19-21.

46. It is not enough to say Ms. Meyer constantly had disagreements with Mr. Morabito

about the amount of accounts payable. Id. at 19:8-10. Ms. Meyer's anxiety and fear of this man

because of his relentless, torturous attacks on her to drive down the accounts payable was almost

palpable as she testified. Id. at 19:10-13. Her testimony sounded more like the accounts the Court

hears in cases of spousal abuse than in cases of commercial transactions. Id. at 19:13-14.
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Page 17
·1· that may require my areas of expertise, including

·2· bankruptcy.

·3· · · · ·Q.· ·And what were you asked to do for Paul

·4· Morabito?

·5· · · · ·A.· ·I was asked to consider whether there

·6· were ways in which he could evade the judgment

·7· through bankruptcy, or I shouldn't say evade the

·8· judgment.· That's not correct.· If there are ways

·9· he could protect himself against -- protect his

10· assets and/or escape liability on account of the

11· judgment.

12· · · · ·Q.· ·Okay.· We'll go into those discussions

13· a little bit later.

14· · · · ·A.· ·Sure.

15· · · · ·Q.· ·Do you know if Hodgson Russ still

16· represents Paul Morabito?

17· · · · ·A.· ·I don't know for sure, but I believe not.

18· · · · ·Q.· ·When was the last time you had any

19· interactions with Paul Morabito?

20· · · · ·A.· ·Within a month or two at the most of --

21· probably 30 days of having been introduced to him.

22· · · · ·Q.· ·So no later than the end of October

23· 2010; is that fair?

24· · · · ·A.· ·I guess, yeah.· I don't know the exact

25· date, but it was maybe a month after I first met
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From: Yalamanchili, Sujata [SYalaman@hodgsonruss.com]
Sent: Wednesday, September 15, 2010 3:40 PM
To: Paul Morabito; Dennis Vacco
CC: Graber, Garry
Subject: Follow Up Thoughts
Attachment(s): "Archived"
I caught up with Garry (who is back in Buffalo today) on our conversation from
yesterday. 
 
Garry had a number of additional ideas, including a possible marital split between Paul
and Edward pursuant to which Edward could retain some of Paul's assets.  We need to
better understand California domestic partner laws, first.
 
Let me know if/when you want to talk.
 
Sujata
 
 
Sujata Yalamanchili, Esq.
Hodgson Russ LLP
The Guaranty Building
140 Pearl Street, Suite 100
Buffalo, NY 14202-4040
(716) 848-1657
(716) 849-0349 (fax)
syalaman@hodgsonruss.com
Secretary: Tammy Smith (tsmith@hodgsonruss.com); 716-848-1276
 
 
 
 
 
Sujata Yalamanchili 
Partner
Hodgson Russ LLP
tel: 716.848.1657 | fax: 716.819.4620 
syalaman@hodgsonruss.com

The Guaranty Building, 140 Pearl Street, Suite 100, Buffalo, New York 14202

      In accordance with Internal Revenue Service Circular 230, we advise you that unless otherwise expressly stated, any discussion of a federal tax issue
in this communication or in any attachment is not intended to be used, and cannot be used, for the purpose of avoiding federal tax penalties.
      This message may contain confidential information that is protected by the attorney-client privilege or otherwise. If you are not the intended
recipient, you are notified that any disclosure, copying, or use of the contents of this message is strictly prohibited. If this message has been received
by you in error, please notify the sender immediately by e-mail and delete the original message. Thank you.

LMWF_SUPP_057745
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From: Graber, Garry [GGraber@hodgsonruss.com]
Sent: Thursday, September 23, 2010 3:10 PM
To: 'Paul Morabito'
CC: Yalamanchili, Sujata; Dennis Vacco
Subject: RE:
Hi Paul,
 
I don't think you should change your State of residence without first comparing the exemption statutes.  Also,
what about the CA tax residency lawsuit ?
 
Do the furnishings have any material value especially in the present economy in view of the fact that they are
used ?  And doesn't  Edward already own some of the furnishings ?  If not exempt and if there is value, It
may make more sense for Edward to use his money to buy the stuff back at the auction the creditor would
have to hold instead of giving you money that the creditor will just take from you.
 
As we discussed yesterday, used clothing rarely has much resale value - even if originally very expensive. 
And much of it, if not all of it, could be exempt.  Unless you are talking about furs or something for which
there is a market, I wouldn't worry about it as I don't think that the creditor will try to take it.
 
I am not sure that the Amex points are transferable.  That needs to be checked.  If so, you want to start using
redeeming them for flights, entertainment, household goods and the like.
 
 
 

Garry M. Graber 
Partner
Hodgson Russ LLP
tel: 716.848.1273 | fax: 716.819.4666
mobile: 716.440.1777 
ggraber@hodgsonruss.com

60 East 42nd Street, 37th Floor New York, NY 10165-0150
The Guaranty Building, 140 Pearl Street, Suite 100, Buffalo, New York 14202 

From: Paul Morabito [mailto:pmorabito@cowestco.com] 
Sent: Thursday, September 23, 2010 10:47 AM
To: Graber, Garry
Subject:
 

Garry

I have a few questions.
Edward and I plan on changing our primary residence from Reno to Laguna Beach.

Change DMV, voter registration, cancel Nevada club memberships, burial plot, resign from State Boards etc 

Should Edward buy our household furniture etc from me for the Reno and Palm Springs houses that are not primary ?  We have
receipts from 2006 for everything worth around $225,000 new.

Also, what about my clothes ?  I was in the hospital for 5 months last year and came out 200 pounds lighter.  I spent $200,000
on a new wardrobe since November.

LMWF_SUPP_098309
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Finally, are my 2 million American Express airline miles something I can do something with or is that an asset, too ?

Paul Morabito
mobile: (775) 223-3585 efax: (480) 222-1062
email: paulmorabito1964@gmail.com

      In accordance with Internal Revenue Service Circular 230, we advise you that unless otherwise expressly stated, any discussion of a federal tax issue
in this communication or in any attachment is not intended to be used, and cannot be used, for the purpose of avoiding federal tax penalties.
      This message may contain confidential information that is protected by the attorney-client privilege or otherwise. If you are not the intended
recipient, you are notified that any disclosure, copying, or use of the contents of this message is strictly prohibited. If this message has been received
by you in error, please notify the sender immediately by e-mail and delete the original message. Thank you.

LMWF_SUPP_098310
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·1· · · · · IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF

·2· · THE STATE OF NEVADA, IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE

·3

·4· ·WILLIAM A. LEONARD, Trustee for· ·)
· · ·the Bankruptcy Estate of Paul· · ·)
·5· ·Anthony Morabito,· · · · · · · · ·)
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·)
·6· · · · · · · · · ·Plaintiff,· · · · )
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·)
·7· · · · · vs.· · · · · · · · · · · · )· · ·No. CV13-02663
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·)
·8· ·SUPERPUMPER, INC., an Arizona· · ·)
· · ·corporation; EDWARD BAYUK,· · · · )
·9· ·individually and as Trustee of· · )
· · ·the EDWARD WILLIAM BAYUK LIVING· ·)
10· ·TRUST; SALVATORE MORABITO, an· · ·)
· · ·individual; and SNOWSHOE· · · · · )
11· ·PETROLEUM, INC., a New York· · · ·)
· · ·corporation,· · · · · · · · · · · )
12· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·)
· · · · · · · · · · ·Defendants.· · · ·)
13· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·)

14

15

16· · · · · Deposition of PAUL MORABITO, a witness herein,

17· · · · · noticed by GARMAN TURNER GORDON, taken 8560 West

18· · · · · Sunset Boulevard, Suite 400, West Hollywood,

19· · · · · California, at 10:04 a.m., Monday, March 21,

20· · · · · 2016, before Tammie Lynn Hall, CSR No. 11525.

21

22· · · · · Job Number 292780

23

24

25
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Page 27
·1· ·information about your insurance policies?

·2· · · · A.· It would be in that office.

·3· · · · Q.· Does Mr. Bayuk obtain insurance policies for

·4· ·you?

·5· · · · A.· I mean, the broker works with Mr. Hawkoette

·6· ·and Mr. Bayuk.· I know the broker.· I don't know the

·7· ·policies.

·8· · · · Q.· Who is the broker?

·9· · · · A.· Dan Kovach (phonetically).

10· · · · Q.· Are you currently employed?

11· · · · A.· No.

12· · · · Q.· What do you do for money right now?

13· · · · A.· My brother and Mr. Bayuk have been lending me

14· ·money.

15· · · · Q.· They've been lending you money?

16· · · · A.· Yes.

17· · · · Q.· Are there formal lending agreements?

18· · · · A.· We update a promissory note every month, but

19· ·other than that...

20· · · · Q.· Well, let's talk about the money that

21· ·Mr. Bayuk has lent you.

22· · · · When did he start lending you money?

23· · · · A.· Several years ago.

24· · · · Q.· Do you recall if it was before or after 2010?

25· · · · A.· It would have been before, I think.
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Page 28
·1· · · · Q.· Do you recall if it was before or after 2005?

·2· · · · A.· Well, I was in the hospital in 2009 for

·3· ·several months, and I was sort of incapacitated for a

·4· ·long period of time.· So Mr. Bayuk had a power of

·5· ·attorney to handle my affairs, so...

·6· · · · Q.· So was this in 2009 when he started lending

·7· ·you money?

·8· · · · A.· Or managing my things, yes.

·9· · · · Q.· You referenced a promissory note that is

10· ·updated.

11· · · · When did that note first come into existence?

12· · · · A.· Well, it's just a ledger or whatever.· He

13· ·keeps a record of everything that he advances me.

14· · · · Q.· Is there a formal written promissory note?

15· · · · A.· I don't recall.

16· · · · Q.· Do you know who would have that information?

17· · · · A.· No.

18· · · · Q.· Who normally drafts promissory notes on your

19· ·behalf?

20· · · · A.· I don't know if I ever had anyone draft any

21· ·promissory notes on my behalf.

22· · · · Q.· Do you know what the balance of the money that

23· ·Ed Bayuk has lent you is today?

24· · · · A.· No.

25· · · · Q.· Do you know if it is more or less than a
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Page 29
·1· ·million dollars?

·2· · · · A.· I would presume more, but I'd be guessing.

·3· · · · Q.· Where would that information be?

·4· · · · A.· With Mr. Bayuk or Mr. Hawkoette.

·5· · · · Q.· Are you aware of a specific ledger that

·6· ·Mr. Bayuk or Mr. Hawkoette keep regarding the money

·7· ·that Mr. Bayuk has lent you?

·8· · · · A.· I'm assuming they do.

·9· · · · Q.· And is that a continuing note that has existed

10· ·since 2009?

11· · · · A.· I don't specifically recall if it's a specific

12· ·note that existed in 2009 or another year or when it

13· ·was.

14· · · · Q.· Do you recall if, at any time, you ever paid

15· ·Mr. Bayuk in full?

16· · · · A.· I believe I've, at times, have paid him back,

17· ·and then I borrowed more money since and...

18· · · · Q.· Are you aware of a time when there was a zero

19· ·obligation owing?

20· · · · A.· At one point, yes.

21· · · · Q.· Do you know when that --

22· · · · A.· I think just after my surgery, around that

23· ·period of time.· I got to a point where I went

24· ·from -- he owed me money, I owed him some money.· Ever

25· ·since then, I've always owed him money.
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·1· · · · Q.· So when you say since your surgery, we're

·2· ·talking about since 2009 or 2010?

·3· · · · A.· 2009, 2010, during that whole period.

·4· · · · Q.· And just so I'm clear, you think that that

·5· ·amount is more than a million dollars today, but you

·6· ·are not sure as to the amount?

·7· · · · A.· I'm not sure.

·8· · · · Q.· Do you know how high it's gotten?

·9· · · · A.· I would be guessing.· I don't remember.· I've

10· ·been told, but I just don't remember specifically.

11· · · · Q.· Who has told you?

12· · · · A.· John Hawkoette.

13· · · · Q.· What has he told you?

14· · · · A.· In the past, that he's added to an amount.

15· · · · Q.· What amount has he added it to?

16· · · · A.· That's what I'm saying.· He's just told

17· ·me -- he's kept a -- he keeps a record of everything.

18· · · · Q.· Has he ever given you a specific amount?

19· · · · A.· Not that I recall of late, no.

20· · · · Q.· Has he ever told you if it was more than

21· ·$5 million?

22· · · · A.· I would probably remember that, so...

23· · · · Q.· Has he ever told you if it was more than

24· ·$2 million?

25· · · · MR. GILMORE:· "He" is Mr. Hawkoette?

1909

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 31
·1· · · · MS. PILATOWICZ:· Yes.

·2· · · · THE WITNESS:· I -- I -- again, I'd be guessing.

·3· · · · MS. PILATOWICZ:

·4· · · · Q.· As of today, you believe there is a balance

·5· ·owing to Mr. Bayuk?

·6· · · · A.· I believe so, yes.

·7· · · · Q.· Okay.· Let's talk about money that has been

·8· ·lent to you by Sam Morabito.

·9· · · · When did Mr. Morabito start lending you money?

10· · · · A.· When I was three.

11· · · · Q.· You have a running ledger since you were

12· ·three?

13· · · · A.· Knowing my brother, he probably does.

14· · · · Q.· Well, let me ask you, in -- at the beginning

15· ·of 2010, do you recall approximately how much you owed

16· ·your brother?

17· · · · A.· I've been in debt to my brother my entire

18· ·life, so I have no idea.

19· · · · Q.· Are you aware of any written promissory notes?

20· · · · A.· I'm sure we've done some over the years.  I

21· ·just don't remember any specifically.

22· · · · Q.· Do you recall any that exist as of today?

23· · · · A.· I'm sure there is one because he pays bills

24· ·for me and he advances me money and he's -- I'm sure

25· ·there is an amount somewhere.
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·1· · · · Q.· So when you say he pays bills for you, how

·2· ·does that happen?· Do you give him a bill, and he pays

·3· ·it?

·4· · · · A.· Well, for example, I'm driving a car, and he

·5· ·leases the car.

·6· · · · Q.· What car is that?

·7· · · · A.· It's a Mercedes Benz.

·8· · · · Q.· When did he lease that car for you?

·9· · · · A.· A year ago.

10· · · · Q.· What other types of bills does he pay for you?

11· · · · A.· None, other than that.· None that -- he

12· ·advances me money, if I ask to borrow more money.

13· · · · Q.· When was the last time you asked him to borrow

14· ·more money?

15· · · · A.· This morning.

16· · · · Q.· Has he lent you money since this morning?

17· · · · A.· No, he didn't pay for breakfast.

18· · · · Q.· Do you have any idea, as we sit here today,

19· ·how much you owe him?

20· · · · A.· No.

21· · · · Q.· Do you know if it's more than a million

22· ·dollars?

23· · · · A.· I don't know.

24· · · · Q.· Do you know who would have that information?

25· · · · A.· No -- I presume, Sam.

1911

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 33
·1· · · · Q.· Do you recall how often in the last year you

·2· ·have asked your brother to advance you money?

·3· · · · A.· There is no regularity to it.· If I'm out of

·4· ·money, I ask my brother if I can have some money.

·5· · · · Q.· Well, give me an example of a situation where

·6· ·you asked him for money.

·7· · · · A.· Actually, I don't even think I asked him.  I

·8· ·think I asked Mr. Hawkoette if he could ask my brother

·9· ·if I could have some money.

10· · · · Q.· So would Mr. Hawkoette have records regarding

11· ·money that your brother has lent you?

12· · · · A.· I don't know.

13· · · · Q.· Do you recall the last time you borrowed money

14· ·from your brother?

15· · · · A.· No.

16· · · · Q.· Have you borrowed money from him in the last

17· ·month?

18· · · · A.· I think so.· I don't remember.· I have

19· ·to -- probably -- probably, yes.

20· · · · Q.· Do you recall any of the circumstances

21· ·regarding borrowing that money?

22· · · · A.· No.· It's usually Mr. Hawkoette's paying

23· ·bills.· And if I don't have any money, I'll say, ask

24· ·Sam or Edward if I can have some money.

25· · · · Q.· What bills does Mr. -- well, let me back up.
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·1· · · · Does Mr. Hawkoette pay bills on your behalf?

·2· · · · A.· Yes.

·3· · · · Q.· What bills does he pay?

·4· · · · A.· My "hydro" bill, my gas bill.

·5· · · · Q.· Are there any other bills?

·6· · · · A.· I don't have a lot of bills.

·7· · · · Q.· So household bills?

·8· · · · A.· Yes.

·9· · · · Q.· Anything else?

10· · · · A.· That's about it.

11· · · · Q.· What about needing cash for groceries?· How do

12· ·you get that?

13· · · · A.· On a credit card.

14· · · · Q.· And then how are your credit cards paid?

15· · · · A.· Mr. Bayuk provides me with a credit card.

16· · · · Q.· What credit card is that?

17· · · · A.· It's a MasterCard.

18· · · · Q.· How long has he -- how long have you had that

19· ·arrangement with Mr. Bayuk?

20· · · · A.· Several years.

21· · · · Q.· Do you know if it's more or less than five

22· ·years?

23· · · · A.· No.

24· · · · Q.· Do you know if it was before or after 2010?

25· · · · A.· During the time of my surgery or during the
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·1· ·2009 period of time, I was unable to function, so he

·2· ·completely paid everything and did everything.

·3· · · · Q.· Did you have a credit card that Mr. Bayuk paid

·4· ·prior to your surgery?

·5· · · · A.· I don't recall.

·6· · · · Q.· Do you know if you had a credit card that

·7· ·Mr. Bayuk paid in 2012?

·8· · · · A.· I -- I don't know.· I don't think so.· I may

·9· ·have.· I had my own credit cards as well.

10· · · · Q.· When did you stop having your own credit

11· ·cards?

12· · · · A.· In the last year.

13· · · · Q.· Why did that change?

14· · · · A.· With the involuntary bankruptcy.

15· · · · Q.· Do you know why Mr. Bayuk is paying your

16· ·bills?

17· · · · A.· Why he's paying my bills?

18· · · · Q.· Yes.

19· · · · A.· His personal reason for doing it?

20· · · · Q.· Yes.

21· · · · A.· You'd have to ask Mr. Bayuk that.

22· · · · Q.· Do you have any idea?

23· · · · A.· I believe that he -- I think the circumstances

24· ·of our lives together and my health prior to anything

25· ·to do with the Herbsts' thing or anything like this --
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·1· · · · Q.· Did you have a different type of relationship

·2· ·before you were friends?

·3· · · · A.· Yes.

·4· · · · Q.· What was that?

·5· · · · A.· We were in a relationship together.

·6· · · · Q.· When did that start?

·7· · · · A.· I'd have to guess.· I don't remember when.

·8· ·1997 or 1998.

·9· · · · Q.· So approximately 20 years ago?

10· · · · A.· Yes.

11· · · · Q.· How long were you guys in a relationship?

12· · · · A.· Until approximately 2009, 2010.

13· · · · Q.· Do you know what caused your status to change?

14· · · · A.· Lots of things cause people's status to change

15· ·in a relationship.

16· · · · Q.· Was there anything in particular that caused

17· ·you guys to break up?

18· · · · A.· Lots of things cause changes in a

19· ·relationship.· There was no one specific thing.

20· · · · Q.· What were the things?

21· · · · A.· I think -- I think managing my health was very

22· ·hard on him and watching me die and go on life support

23· ·and come off and whatnot was very emotional and very

24· ·difficult.

25· · · · Q.· Was there anything, other than managing your
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·1· ·health, that caused you guys to break up?

·2· · · · A.· I think that was a large part of it.

·3· · · · Q.· Was there anything else?

·4· · · · A.· Nothing specific that I can put -- put my

·5· ·finger on.

·6· · · · Q.· Do you recall if you guys broke up prior to or

·7· ·after the judgment in the underlying Herbst litigation?

·8· · · · A.· I believe it was prior to.· It was around the

·9· ·time of my -- of my health.

10· · · · Q.· And your health was in 2009?

11· · · · A.· Uh-huh.· And 2010.

12· · · · Q.· Approximately until when in 2010 were you

13· ·having health issues?

14· · · · A.· I still have them today.

15· · · · Q.· What business ventures have you and Mr. Bayuk

16· ·been involved in?

17· · · · A.· Superpumper, Berry-Hinckley, and the Versinet

18· ·business.

19· · · · Q.· Explain to me what the Versinet business is.

20· · · · A.· There was -- there is Versinet, and there is

21· ·other companies that we're looking at buying an option

22· ·and putting together FCC -- originally, Versinet bought

23· ·a company called Chip Com that owned some licenses.

24· ·And then, separately, they went out and bought and

25· ·optioned other FCC licenses.
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·1· · · · A.· I don't know.· I wasn't involved in it.

·2· · · · Q.· So you presume that the lawyers were speaking,

·3· ·but you don't know if there was ever a conversation

·4· ·about the transfers occurring between the lawyers?

·5· · · · A.· I wasn't involved in any of the attorneys'

·6· ·clients -- attorneys' communications with each other.

·7· · · · Q.· And you don't recall ever telling the Herbsts

·8· ·that these transfers were occurring?

·9· · · · A.· No.

10· · · · Q.· Let's talk about Mr. Vacco.

11· · · · When did you first meet Mr. Vacco?

12· · · · A.· I don't specifically remember.

13· · · · Q.· Do you know if it was more or less than five

14· ·years ago?

15· · · · A.· Had to have been --

16· · · · Q.· Good point.

17· · · · Do you know if it was more or less than ten years

18· ·ago?

19· · · · A.· It was around that time, but, I mean, I don't

20· ·specifically remember when.

21· · · · Q.· How did you first meet Mr. Vacco?

22· · · · A.· He was referred on to me by the attorney that

23· ·I had at the time who was being named U.S. Attorney.

24· · · · Q.· And did you meet Mr. Vacco in person?

25· · · · A.· No.
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·1· ·the transfers that are the subject of the state court

·2· ·litigation.

·3· · · · A.· He directed it.· He did.

·4· · · · Q.· What conversations do you have -- did you have

·5· ·with Mr. Vacco regarding those transfers?

·6· · · · A.· Specific conversations, I don't recall.

·7· ·Generally, what he did was I -- my brother and Edward

·8· ·said, we want to -- what do you go about doing -- we

·9· ·had never been in this situation.· What do you go about

10· ·doing in order to where they are out of something and

11· ·I'm in this.

12· · · · How do we -- how do we do this in a transparent

13· ·and proper way.· And he ran with the ball, and he's

14· ·formerly a United States attorney, attorney general in

15· ·New York.· He's a very prominent, ethical guy.· And he

16· ·said okay.· How do you do this in a way where there

17· ·would be no questions, and it's done properly.· And he

18· ·said, you know, "This is how you do it."· So he did it.

19· · · · Q.· So is it a fair assessment that you told him

20· ·split everything up, and then he just gave you

21· ·documents to sign and that was your involvement in it?

22· · · · A.· Effectively.· I mean, I wasn't involved -- I

23· ·mean, I think I may have identified one -- I -- I mean,

24· ·we didn't -- I didn't know any of the people involved.

25· ·I never met any of the people involved.· I wasn't
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·1· ·involved in any of the process, so Mr. Vacco directed

·2· ·the whole thing.

·3· · · · Q.· When you say you weren't aware of any of the

·4· ·people involved in the process, who are you referring

·5· ·to?

·6· · · · A.· Like the appraisers and stuff.· I never met

·7· ·anybody.· I wasn't involved.· Haven't known them

·8· ·before; haven't known them since.

·9· · · · Q.· Did you review any of the evaluations when

10· ·they came in?

11· · · · A.· I may have, but I didn't have say in it, so it

12· ·was not something that, you know -- it was done --

13· ·Mr. Vacco handled the whole thing.

14· · · · Q.· So Mr. Vacco got appraisals and then laid

15· ·everything out and said, here is what is going to

16· ·happen and had you guys sign the documents?

17· · · · A.· Basically.

18· · · · Q.· Were there any negotiations about who would

19· ·get what properties?

20· · · · A.· No, I was -- I was going to stay in Reno, and

21· ·Edward wanted to go back, you know -- it was never our

22· ·plan to go back to California, so he was irritated with

23· ·that.· But it's just what we did.

24· · · · Q.· Was there ever any discussion over what the

25· ·purchase price for certain assets would be?
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·1· ·worth of expenses that can go through every

·2· ·single dime and see how much money I spend and

·3· ·what it is and it's virtually all business.

·4· · · · · · ·I don't have a personal life and I

·5· ·haven't had a personal life for decades.

·6· · · · · · ·TRUSTEE LEONARD:· Wasn't Mr. Bayuk

·7· ·paying the American Express bills?

·8· · · · · · ·MR. MORABITO:· If Mr. Bayuk advanced

·9· ·the American Express bills, then a good portion

10· ·would be reimbursed by the company or he would

11· ·have been given credit for the business portion

12· ·which is the vast majority.

13· · · · · · ·TRUSTEE LEONARD:· So what is your best

14· ·guess of how much you owed Mr. Bayuk on December

15· ·31st, 2013?

16· · · · · · ·MR. MORABITO:· I would have -- it would

17· ·be a guess.· It could be in the millions of

18· ·dollars.· I don't know.

19· · · · · · ·TRUSTEE LEONARD:· How much do you think

20· ·you owed him on December 31st, 2014?

21· · · · · · ·MR. MORABITO:· It would be a guess but

22· ·I'm sure -- I'm sure I owed him a significant

23· ·amount of money.· I would think.· I don't know.

24· · · · · · ·TRUSTEE LEONARD:· Is there a way that

25· ·you could find that information out?
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·1· · · · · · ·MR. GORDON:· And that would be a

·2· ·question then that we would both have for --

·3· · · · · · ·MR. MORABITO:· Yeah.

·4· · · · · · ·MR. GORDON:· For Lippes.

·5· · · · · · ·MR. MORABITO:· Yeah, because I think

·6· ·when you look through this you realize that all

·7· ·these things just -- it's done foolishly.

·8· · · · · · ·MR. GORDON:· Before we conclude, just a

·9· ·couple questions here coming to a close and I'll

10· ·reserve all the rest.

11· · · · · · ·Looking at this Exhibit 18, now I see

12· ·some contributions from you, the first one

13· ·$439,980 but then I go down to the fifth one and

14· ·it's coming up Liburd and Dash and they deposited

15· ·on 1/29/2011, $1,999,950.

16· · · · · · ·What is Liburd and Dash?

17· · · · · · ·MR. MORABITO:· They are a law firm that

18· ·was representing a trust.

19· · · · · · ·MR. GORDON:· And which law --

20· · · · · · ·Where is that law firm located?

21· · · · · · ·MR. MORABITO:· I don't know.

22· · · · · · ·MR. GORDON:· Is it located in Nevis,

23· ·does that refresh your memory?

24· · · · · · ·MR. MORABITO:· It's an offshore

25· ·account.
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·1· · · · · · ·MR. GORDON:· Was it representing the

·2· ·Meadows Trust?

·3· · · · · · ·MR. MORABITO:· No.

·4· · · · · · ·MR. GORDON:· Which trust was it

·5· ·representing?

·6· · · · · · ·MR. MORABITO:· The money you are

·7· ·referring to Mr. Marsland.

·8· · · · · · ·MR. GORDON:· By who?

·9· · · · · · ·MR. MORABITO:· The money -- the six

10· ·million dollar money that was put abroad for

11· ·Mr. Marsland so we let him out, that Seppen

12· ·(phonetic) Trust.

13· · · · · · ·MR. GORDON:· That's the Seppen Trust?

14· · · · · · ·MR. MORABITO:· It's the attorneys for

15· ·the Seppen Trust, I believe.

16· · · · · · ·MR. GORDON:· And is that trust

17· ·established --

18· · · · · · ·MR. MORABITO:· When I say trust, small

19· ·T.

20· · · · · · ·MR. GORDON:· Is it the Seppen Trust or

21· ·is it trustee?

22· · · · · · ·MR. MORABITO:· Seppen Trust was a

23· ·trustee.

24· · · · · · ·MR. GORDON:· Right.

25· · · · · · ·MR. MORABITO:· But there was no trust.

1927

http://www.litigationservices.com


Exhibit 16

1928



·1

·2· · · · · · · · UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT

·3· · · · · · · · · · ·DISTRICT OF NEVADA

·4

·5· ·In re:· · · · · · · · · · · · · ) Case No.
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·) BK-N-13-51237-GWZ
·6· ·PAUL A. MORABITO,· · · · · · · ·)
· · ·an individual,· · · · · · · · · ) Chapter 7
·7· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·)
· · · · · · · · ·Debtor.· · · · · · ·)
·8· ·________________________________)

·9

10

11· · · · · · · · · · · · · VOLUME IV

12· · · · ·EXAMINATION UNDER OATH OF PAUL ANTHONY MORABITO,

13· · · · ·the debtor herein, noticed by Woodburn & Wedge,

14· · · · ·taken at 1 Park Plaza, Irvine, California, at

15· · · · ·10:10 a.m. on Monday, December 5, 2015, before

16· · · · ·Delia M. Satterlee, CSR 9114.

17

18· · · · ·Job No. 355550

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

1929

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 80
·1· · · · A.· With Mr. Bayuk.

·2· · · · Q.· Okay.· So Mr. -- Do you no longer rent your

·3· ·property from La -- La Cienza or something of that

·4· ·nature?

·5· · · · A.· I received six months free rent from

·6· ·Mr. Cusenza and moved out of the house in the middle of

·7· ·the year.

·8· · · · Q.· Okay.· So you're no longer residing where you

·9· ·resided in February of this year.

10· · · · A.· Correct.

11· · · · Q.· And you're residing where now?

12· · · · A.· I reside in Palm Springs.

13· · · · Q.· What address?

14· · · · A.· 1254 Mary Fleming Circle.

15· · · · Q.· And that's one of the addresses that was part

16· ·of the trade of property that you were talking about

17· ·earlier?

18· · · · A.· That's correct.

19· · · · Q.· I don't want to waste my valuable time because

20· ·it is valuable time.· Can you tell me right now that you

21· ·have no estimate of what your monthly expenses are?

22· · · · A.· It would be approximate, close to what this is

23· ·(indicating).

24· · · · Q.· Approximately 30,000?

25· · · · A.· Give or take.
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·1· · · · Q.· Okay.· Has Mr. Bayuk been loaning you money

·2· ·each month to pay your monthly expenses?

·3· · · · A.· A combination of Mr. Bayuk and my brother Sam

·4· ·have lent me money, yes.

·5· · · · Q.· Okay.· And that's since February 25th of this

·6· ·year?

·7· · · · A.· Not necessarily.· I don't know -- I can't think

·8· ·of the answer to that.· I don't know.

·9· · · · Q.· Okay.· So Mr. Edward Bayuk and Mr. Salvatore

10· ·Morabito have made loans to you since February of this

11· ·year.

12· · · · A.· Since February of this year?

13· · · · Q.· Yes.

14· · · · A.· I can't be specific whether or not it's from

15· ·the proceeds before or after.· I don't know.

16· · · · Q.· It can't be what?· I'm --

17· · · · A.· I don't know if I received money before that

18· ·and still use it.· I'm not sure.

19· · · · Q.· Okay.· And you have no idea how much

20· ·Mr. Salvatore Morabito has loaned to you in 2016?

21· · · · A.· In 2016?· It would be a guess.

22· · · · Q.· And do you have any idea how much Mr. Bayuk has

23· ·loaned to you in 2016?

24· · · · A.· It would -- It would be a guess, but it would

25· ·approximate the -- these numbers, less than the numbers

1931

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 82
·1· ·here (indicating).

·2· · · · Q.· Okay.· Are these loans documented in any

·3· ·fashion such as with a promissory note?

·4· · · · A.· There is a -- an original promissory note that

·5· ·gets modified every month with interest, et cetera.

·6· · · · Q.· And when was this promissory note originally

·7· ·created?

·8· · · · A.· I don't recall.

·9· · · · Q.· No idea?

10· · · · A.· I -- I -- I think we've spoken to -- of it

11· ·earlier.· I don't maintain the update of it and the

12· ·interest on it.

13· · · · Q.· Okay.· There was a note of $1,617,000 that was

14· ·created as part of the property trade we talked about

15· ·earlier.· Is that the note you're referring to?

16· · · · A.· No.

17· · · · Q.· There's a different note?

18· · · · A.· I believe we've, on prior testimony, have said

19· ·that we -- any money that's been lent to me by Mr. Bayuk

20· ·since that point in time, that we had paid that note.

21· ·It's gone, satisfied.· And then on a go-forward basis, I

22· ·have borrowed money from him off and on.

23· · · · Q.· But you said you paid the original note of a

24· ·million six hundred and seven- --

25· · · · A.· He paid me the original note.
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·1· · · · Q.· He paid you the original note?

·2· · · · A.· Yes.

·3· · · · Q.· And then it got into a situation where he was

·4· ·lending you more money.· And my question is, that

·5· ·loan --

·6· · · · A.· I paid him.· So he wouldn't be lending me more

·7· ·money; he'd be lending me new money.

·8· · · · Q.· If he's paying your monthly expenses --

·9· · · · A.· He's not paying my monthly expenses.

10· · · · Q.· He's lending you money to pay your monthly

11· ·expenses.

12· · · · A.· He's lending me my -- my money, and what I do

13· ·with it he has no knowledge of.

14· · · · Q.· Okay.· Is there a promissory note that reflects

15· ·Mr. Bayuk's loan to you?

16· · · · A.· There is a updated accounting of it.· And --

17· ·And how -- whether it's the attach- -- whether -- We

18· ·don't -- We certainly don't update the promissory note

19· ·every month by signing a new promissory note.

20· · · · Q.· But is there a promissory note?

21· · · · A.· I believe there to be.

22· · · · Q.· And do you know when that promissory note was

23· ·dated?

24· · · · A.· I -- I don't recall.

25· · · · Q.· No idea?
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·1· · · · A.· No.

·2· · · · Q.· And you don't know whether it's updated each

·3· ·time Mr. Bayuk loaned you more money?

·4· · · · A.· I would assume the accounting would be kept

·5· ·accurate.

·6· · · · Q.· Okay.· I think you've already answered this

·7· ·question, but just make me -- let me make sure I have it

·8· ·for the record.

·9· · · · Since February 25th of 2016 --

10· · · · A.· Yes.

11· · · · Q.· -- have you received any money --

12· · · · A.· Yes.

13· · · · Q.· -- for any reason --

14· · · · A.· Yes.

15· · · · Q.· -- whether in the form of a loan or a direct

16· ·payment or for salary from Virsenet, LLC, Globe

17· ·Wireless, Bushwick & Myrtle, USHFCC, Global Wideband or

18· ·Maple Leaf?

19· · · · A.· No.

20· · · · Q.· Since February 25th of 2016, have you received

21· ·any money for any reason in any format from Meadowwood

22· ·Farms -- I mean Meadow Farms Irrevocable Trust?

23· · · · A.· Not that I'm aware of.

24· · · · Q.· Okay.· Are you telling me that since

25· ·February 25 of 2016, your sole source of funds, whether
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·1· · · · Q.· So you have not incurred expenses --

·2· · · · A.· No.

·3· · · · Q.· -- for USHFCC --

·4· · · · MR. GILMORE:· Listen to the question, please.

·5· · · · MR. MURTHA:

·6· · · · Q.· -- in 2016.

·7· · · · A.· No.

·8· · · · Q.· You have not incurred expenses on behalf of

·9· ·Virsenet in 2016?

10· · · · A.· No.

11· · · · Q.· Are you working for Virsenet currently?

12· · · · A.· No.

13· · · · Q.· Okay.· So let's get to the chase then.

14· · · · You incur expenses each month to live; is that

15· ·correct?

16· · · · A.· Yes.

17· · · · Q.· They are somewhere in the range of $30,000 a

18· ·month, plus or minus.

19· · · · A.· Approximately.

20· · · · Q.· Okay.· And your sole source of be- -- sole

21· ·source of money to be able to pay those expenses are

22· ·either Salvatore Morabito or Edward Bayuk.

23· · · · A.· Lending me money.

24· · · · Q.· You call them loans.· It -- And my question:

25· ·Other than those two individuals, have you received any
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·1· ·money from any other person or entity for the purpose of

·2· ·paying your living expenses?

·3· · · · MR. GILMORE:· From February to the present.

·4· · · · MR. MURTHA:· Yes.

·5· · · · THE WITNESS:· No, not that I can recall, not at

·6· ·all.

·7· · · · MR. MURTHA:

·8· · · · Q.· And you're telling me now that the money that

·9· ·you have received from Mr. Bayuk was either in the form

10· ·of a loan or a gift or just a loan.

11· · · · A.· Loan.

12· · · · Q.· Loan only.

13· · · · A.· Yes.

14· · · · Q.· And the money you've received from

15· ·Mr. Salvatore Morabito is in the nature of a loan or a

16· ·gift or only a loan?

17· · · · A.· Loan.

18· · · · Q.· Okay.

19· · · · MR. GILMORE:· From February of this year to the

20· ·present.

21· · · · MR. MURTHA:

22· · · · Q.· From February --

23· · · · A.· To the best --

24· · · · Q.· -- to the present.

25· · · · A.· -- of my knowledge, yes, from my brother.
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·1· · · · A.· For -- For not -- I don't know if that was...

·2· · · · Q.· Okay.

·3· · · · A.· That wasn't a statement from me.

·4· · · · Q.· All right.· When we broke, we were talking

·5· ·about Sefton Trustees.· Could you tell me when and how

·6· ·you learned about the Sefton Trustees?

·7· · · · A.· I don't recall.

·8· · · · Q.· And is it correct to call them "Sefton

·9· ·Trustees," or is it "Sefton Trust"?

10· · · · A.· I don't know.

11· · · · Q.· You don't know.

12· · · · A.· No.

13· · · · Q.· Not at all, even though you transferred

14· ·$6 million to them.

15· · · · A.· Yes.

16· · · · Q.· Okay.· You can't recall how you learned about

17· ·Sefton Trustees?

18· · · · A.· Not specifically, no.

19· · · · Q.· But you are familiar with an entity called

20· ·Sefton Trustees or something similar to that.

21· · · · A.· Yes.

22· · · · Q.· Okay.· And you transferred $6 million to them.

23· · · · A.· Yes.

24· · · · Q.· Do you know where the -- Sefton Trustees is

25· ·located?
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·1· · · · A.· No.

·2· · · · Q.· Is it in New Zealand?

·3· · · · A.· I -- I don't recall.· I -- No.· I don't...

·4· · · · Q.· You -- You sent $6 million to an entity that

·5· ·you can't recall the name and you can't recall where

·6· ·they're located.

·7· · · · A.· This is now 2016.· That was several years ago,

·8· ·and I don't specifically recall the corporate

·9· ·information about them.· I mean we can look at the old

10· ·statements to see what we said.· I didn't -- I didn't

11· ·notice it.

12· · · · Q.· Okay.· Do you know if Sefton Trustees

13· ·specializes in asset protection trust?

14· · · · A.· I have -- I don't know.

15· · · · Q.· And you can't recall the first time you

16· ·communicated with Sefton Trustees?

17· · · · A.· No.

18· · · · Q.· How did you communicate with Sefton Trustees?

19· · · · A.· I -- I don't recall.

20· · · · Q.· Did you communicate by e-mail?· By telephone?

21· ·By written correspondence?

22· · · · A.· I -- I don't recall.

23· · · · Q.· You can't recall at all.

24· · · · A.· No.

25· · · · Q.· Did you use an intermediary to communicate with
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·1· ·Sefton Trustees?· For example, Mr. Vacco.

·2· · · · A.· I don't believe so.· No, I -- I don't think so.

·3· · · · Q.· So your communications with Sefton Trustees

·4· ·would have been direct from you to Sefton?

·5· · · · A.· I didn't say that.· I -- I just don't think

·6· ·Mr. Vacco...

·7· · · · Q.· Okay.· Did you use any other intermediary?

·8· · · · A.· Not that I -- I -- I don't recall the

·9· ·circumstances that led to Sefton Trustees.

10· · · · Q.· How did you know which bank account or -- yes.

11· ·How did you know which bank account to send $6 million

12· ·to to Sefton Trustees?

13· · · · A.· I don't know if I sent it to a specific bank

14· ·account.· I mean, I -- I don't know the -- I don't have

15· ·the details in front of me or know the -- remember the

16· ·details of how it all came about.

17· · · · Q.· Okay.· And you can't recall how those funds

18· ·were transferred, whether you did it directly or whether

19· ·you went through an intermediary?

20· · · · A.· You -- You -- We ear- -- saw earlier they came

21· ·out of Bank of Montreal.

22· · · · Q.· Yes.· We had -- That's where the funds came

23· ·from, but we don't know where they went to.

24· · · · A.· Oh.· You had said earlier that they went to

25· ·Sefton Trustees, so I'm presuming --
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·1· · · · Q.· Well, I'm --

·2· · · · A.· -- you --

·3· · · · Q.· -- asking you.

·4· · · · A.· I -- I would be presuming.

·5· · · · Q.· And you can't recall whether you communicated

·6· ·with Sefton Trustees versus -- by way of e-mail or

·7· ·written correspondence?

·8· · · · A.· Whether it was by e-mail or written

·9· ·correspondence or a third party, I can't recall.

10· · · · Q.· Okay.· Are you aware of a file, whether it's

11· ·electronic or paper, maintained by anyone anywhere in

12· ·regard to your dealings with Sefton Trustees?

13· · · · A.· I -- I don't know.· I -- I -- A file -- I'm

14· ·sure Sefton Trustees must have something.

15· · · · Q.· But do you have something?

16· · · · A.· Not that I can -- No.

17· · · · Q.· Do you have something on a computer that

18· ·contains your correspondence or your e-mails or anything

19· ·else to do with Sefton Trustees?

20· · · · A.· Not from several years ago.· I don't have any

21· ·of that.

22· · · · Q.· Do you still use the same computer you used six

23· ·years ago?

24· · · · A.· I've gone through a dozen.

25· · · · Q.· Okay.· But have you changed the server?
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·1· · · · A.· Absolutely.· I've had them blow up several

·2· ·times, yes.

·3· · · · Q.· Okay.· So you can't access your communications

·4· ·with Sefton Trustees even if you tried?

·5· · · · A.· Just like I couldn't access my Berry-Hinckley

·6· ·e-mails during the trial, I don't think I could have

·7· ·gone further back to do that when I couldn't have done

·8· ·that.

·9· · · · Q.· Did you ever execute a trust agreement with

10· ·Sefton Trustees?

11· · · · A.· I don't know.

12· · · · Q.· What would it take for you to obtain some

13· ·recollection about Sefton Trustees?

14· · · · A.· Other than what we've already said in a prior

15· ·341, I don't know what other inquiry I can make.

16· · · · Q.· Okay.· You sent them $6 million.

17· · · · A.· (Nods head in the affirmative.)

18· · · · Q.· And you don't know whether you signed a trust

19· ·agreement with them.

20· · · · A.· That's...

21· · · · MR. GILMORE:· This is in your --

22· · · · MR. MURTHA:

23· · · · Q.· Did --

24· · · · MR. GILMORE:· John, these are -- I -- I know you're

25· ·dissatisfied with the answer.· It's --
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·1· · · · MR. MURTHA:· I am.

·2· · · · MR. GILMORE:· -- clear to me that you're

·3· ·dissatisfied.· But just re-asking it is not going to

·4· ·eli-...

·5· · · · MR. MURTHA:· Okay.

·6· · · · Q.· Other than a trust agreement, do you recall

·7· ·signing any documents with Sefton Trustee?

·8· · · · A.· With -- You're asking me to be specific in

·9· ·saying what was the process that occurred, and I do not

10· ·recall the process that occurred at that time.· That

11· ·was --

12· · · · Q.· Okay.

13· · · · A.· -- seven or eight years ago.

14· · · · Q.· Okay.· And so I'm asking some specific

15· ·questions in the hope that they might jar your memory.

16· · · · A.· All right.

17· · · · Q.· You said you don't recall whether you executed

18· ·a trust agreement.· My next question is:· Do you recall

19· ·executing anything in writing with Sefton Trustees?

20· · · · A.· Do I recall?· No.

21· · · · Q.· Did you ever authorize anyone to execute a

22· ·trust agreement on your behalf with Sefton Trustees?

23· · · · A.· Not that I recall.· I wouldn't -- I don't know

24· ·why I would.· I don't think so.

25· · · · Q.· Did you ever authorize anyone to execute any
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·1· ·other written document with Sefton Trustees on your

·2· ·behalf?

·3· · · · A.· Not that I can recall.

·4· · · · Q.· Assuming -- and I know this -- this is an

·5· ·assumption.· But assuming written documents with Sefton

·6· ·Trustees exist, who would have copies of those documents

·7· ·besides Sefton Trustees?

·8· · · · A.· I'd be guessing.· I mean, Mr. Bernstein or -- I

·9· ·don't know.

10· · · · Q.· Okay.· Did you or anyone acting on your behalf

11· ·ever provide Sefton Trustees with any written

12· ·instructions on what to do with the $6 million that you

13· ·transferred to Sefton in September of 2010?

14· · · · A.· I can say unequivocally that I cannot sit here

15· ·today and recall the events or the process that went

16· ·through to initiate or go through that process.

17· · · · Q.· Okay.· Once again, can you recall giving Sefton

18· ·Trustees written instructions on what to do with the

19· ·$6 million?

20· · · · A.· I can't recall any specific or even general

21· ·process as to how that came about.

22· · · · Q.· Can you recall whether you used the services of

23· ·an attorney or a law firm to assist you with your

24· ·communications with Sefton Trustees?

25· · · · A.· I -- I would -- I would only be assuming
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·1· · · · Q.· Okay.· Matt Russan.· I think you said you

·2· ·could --

·3· · · · A.· Oh, Rus- -- Okay.· Rus- -- You said Russo.

·4· · · · Yeah.· He was a clerk doing -- what do you call

·5· ·it? -- web design and stuff like that.

·6· · · · Q.· For what entity?

·7· · · · A.· I don't remember.

·8· · · · Q.· Was it WatchMyBlock?

·9· · · · A.· I don't think so.

10· · · · Q.· TalkToMyBlock?

11· · · · A.· Same thing.

12· · · · I don't remember what Matt did.

13· · · · Q.· Can't remember why you paid him $9,100?

14· · · · A.· I don't specifically recall what he did.  I

15· ·know we ended up firing him.

16· · · · Q.· Why?

17· · · · A.· He's a very difficult individual, wasn't

18· ·particularly responsible.

19· · · · Q.· Now that you recognize the name, do you recall

20· ·the last time you spoke to him?

21· · · · A.· Oh.· I haven't spoke to him for -- probably

22· ·since 2013.

23· · · · Q.· Okay.· I'd like to now change subjects.· Bear

24· ·with me one minute.

25· · · · We've been going one hour.· Do you want to take a

1944

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 176
·1· ·break?

·2· · · · A.· I'm fine.· I have a cookie.

·3· · · · Q.· You're --

·4· · · · MR. MONSOUR:· I -- I'm going to interrupt.

·5· · · · Can we take a five-minute break?

·6· · · · And, Paul, I -- I suggest you get some air and take

·7· ·a cookie because I'm having real trouble hearing you.

·8· ·And you're kind of slurring and slowing down.· And you

·9· ·may not realize it.· But I think you need some air to --

10· ·to -- to --

11· · · · THE WITNESS:· Yeah.

12· · · · MR. MONSOUR:· -- recall a lot of this stuff it'll

13· ·help the trust to get out.

14· · · · MR. MURTHA:· That's fine with we.· I'll just stop

15· ·my stop watch and --

16· · · · THE WITNESS:· That's fine.

17· · · · MR. MURTHA:· -- preserve my --

18· · · · MR. MONSOUR:· Taking five, we can back up.

19· · · · MR. MURTHA:· Okay.· And I stopped my watch.

20· · · · THE WITNESS:· Can you hear me?

21· · · · MR. MURTHA:· Yes, I can hear you.

22· · · · But before we leave --

23· · · · MR. MONSOUR:· I was having trouble hearing you,

24· ·Paul.· I'm sorry.· You -- You sound like you were kind

25· ·of get- -- mumbling, and I was worried that your -- your

1945

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 182
·1· · · · (Exhibit 14 identified.)

·2· · · · MR. MURTHA:

·3· · · · Q.· Do you see that, sir?

·4· · · · A.· Yep, "formerly P.A. Morabito AZ & Company,

·5· ·Limited."

·6· · · · Q.· Mm-hmm.

·7· · · · A.· So it probably changed the name during 2010.

·8· · · · Q.· Okay.· And do you recognize this tax return as

·9· ·a Consolidated Neva- -- Western Corporation tax return?

10· · · · A.· It says so.

11· · · · Q.· Okay.· Could you go to page 685.

12· · · · A.· Mm-hmm.

13· · · · Q.· And that would be the --

14· · · · A.· Bates number.

15· · · · Q.· -- Bates numbers on the bottom, 685.

16· · · · A.· Yep.· Got it.

17· · · · Q.· Okay.· And it is identifying Superpumper, Inc.

18· ·and Big Wheel Hospitality.

19· · · · Were those assets that were owned by CWC at the end

20· ·of the year 2010?

21· · · · A.· If you look at the top of the -- that page --

22· · · · Q.· Mm-hmm.

23· · · · A.· -- it says "9/12/11, 3:50 p.m."

24· · · · Q.· Mm-hmm.

25· · · · A.· I -- I don't know if this is for the full year
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·1· ·or if this is for a partial year.· I -- I don't know.

·2· ·I -- I know it's for the -- for 2010.· Whether or not it

·3· ·had it for the full year, you'd have to look through

·4· ·here (indicating) and find out.

·5· · · · Q.· Okay.

·6· · · · A.· You're making --

·7· · · · Q.· All right.

·8· · · · A.· -- an assumption that I won't jump with.

·9· · · · Q.· All right.· We'll have our tax experts go over

10· ·that -- that information then.

11· · · · A.· Yeah.

12· · · · Q.· Bear with me a second.

13· · · · Could you go to Exhibit 13.

14· · · · A.· 13?

15· · · · Q.· Yes.

16· · · · A.· Got it.

17· · · · Q.· Here's why I was confused as to whether

18· ·Consolidated Western or Consolidated Nevada Corporation

19· ·was affiliated with Raffles Insurance.

20· · · · Exhibit 13 is identified as an "Informational

21· ·Return" -- "Information Return of U.S. Persons with

22· ·Respect to Certain Foreign Corporations," Form 5471.

23· · · · (Exhibit 13 identified.)

24· · · · THE WITNESS:· Yeah.

25· · · · MR. MURTHA:
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·1· · · · Q.· And in there it indicates it's for the period

·2· ·from April 1, 2009 to March 31, 2010.

·3· · · · Do you see that, sir?

·4· · · · A.· I do.

·5· · · · Q.· And in block 1a it is identifying Raffles

·6· ·Insurance Limited as the foreign entity owned by

·7· ·Consolidated Western Corporation; is that correct?

·8· · · · A.· I think you're misunderstanding it, but yeah,

·9· ·that's what it says.· It doesn't own Raffles Insurance,

10· ·Limited.

11· · · · Q.· It has shares.

12· · · · A.· It has an intere- -- It -- It has a cooperative

13· ·interest in it.· It doesn't own Raffles Insurance,

14· ·Limited.

15· · · · Q.· Okay.· Doesn't own Raffles Insurance --

16· · · · A.· No.

17· · · · Q.· -- in its entirety, but this is indicating that

18· ·Consolidated Western and not Consolidated Nevada was the

19· ·entity that owned the shares in Raffles; is that

20· ·correct?

21· · · · A.· At the -- At --

22· · · · MR. GILMORE:· Listen to the question.

23· · · · THE WITNESS:· I -- I heard the question very, very

24· ·well.

25· · · · At this point in time maybe, but the company
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·1· ·that's -- that originally owned Raffles was Consolidated

·2· ·Nevada Corporation.

·3· · · · Q.· Okay.

·4· · · · A.· Raffles was started by the Hinckleys.

·5· · · · Q.· I understand that.

·6· · · · A.· At -- At --

·7· · · · Q.· But I was focus- --

·8· · · · A.· -- this point in time, it could have

·9· ·transferred to this company.· I don't know.

10· · · · Q.· Okay.· Well, that was my question when I was

11· ·talking to you about the end of 2010, which entity owned

12· ·the interest in Raffles Insurance.

13· · · · A.· Well, thank you for showing me Schedule 13.

14· · · · Q.· Okay.· Schedule 13.· And do you have any reason

15· ·to disbelieve the -- the information on Exhibit 13?

16· · · · A.· I'd have to better understand the numbers or

17· ·the dates.· You're -- You're -- You're going through a

18· ·process that's very detailed; and if we're going to do

19· ·it, then I need to see all the information in order to

20· ·give you a complete answer.

21· · · · Q.· Okay.· Towards the bottom of the page, first

22· ·page of Exhibit 13, it identifies common and preferred

23· ·stock of the foreign corporation.· Do you see that?

24· · · · A.· Yes.

25· · · · Q.· And it says at the beginning of the period
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·1· ·there were 314 shares of each, and then at the end of

·2· ·the period there were 323?

·3· · · · A.· Yes.

·4· · · · Q.· Do you know why that was increased?

·5· · · · A.· Proba- -- Well, if you know anything about

·6· ·captive insurance companies, it means somebody left, so

·7· ·it pro rata increases across the board.

·8· · · · Q.· Okay.· Describe for me "captive insurance

·9· ·company."

10· · · · A.· Webster's dictionary or common sense?

11· · · · Q.· The business entity, a captive insurance

12· ·company.· You --

13· · · · A.· Yeah.

14· · · · Q.· You've said "If you know anything about

15· ·captives" --

16· · · · A.· Yep.

17· · · · Q.· -- which to me means some sort of a specific

18· ·business model, then I want to know what you're talking

19· ·about when you say "captives."

20· · · · A.· Well, my understanding of captives -- Every

21· ·captive is different.· But what it is is a bunch of

22· ·people come together and pool the risk.· And it's no

23· ·different than if you own a Domino's Pizza franchise and

24· ·you have ten delivery vehicles, your local Farmers agent

25· ·is not going to insure ten people who have to deliver a
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·1· ·hot pizza in 15 minutes or less because they drive like

·2· ·maniacs --

·3· · · · Q.· Okay.

·4· · · · A.· -- and they smack their cars.

·5· · · · So when you get high-risk businesses like ones that

·6· ·have triple ta- -- oil trailer like Berry-Hinckley

·7· ·did --

·8· · · · Q.· Mm-hmm.

·9· · · · A.· -- and where they had one of them blow up over

10· ·the -- over the pass in -- in Lake Tahoe and kill a

11· ·family, you can't go and get insurance.· So you have to

12· ·self insure.· And the way you self insure is you go to a

13· ·group or a cooperative, and that cooperative pools its

14· ·risk.· And you may be in there with some Dunkin' Donut

15· ·franchisees, who have really low risk, and some people

16· ·who produce dynamite, who have really high risk.

17· · · · So this list of people you have in Number 13, the

18· ·directors and whatnot, could have any -- you -- the --

19· ·In other words, this wouldn't be a bunch of oil

20· ·companies in one thing.· That would be stupid.· You'd

21· ·have a bunch of low-risk things, a bunch of high-risk

22· ·things --

23· · · · Q.· Okay.

24· · · · A.· -- and they all throw themselves in together.

25· ·It's actually a really stupid way to be in business.
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·1· ·But it's --

·2· · · · Q.· But -- But as I understand --

·3· · · · A.· A lot of people --

·4· · · · Q.· -- it --

·5· · · · A.· -- do it.

·6· · · · Q.· -- being a captive, the shareholders, if you

·7· ·will -- the owners, if you will -- are not only insured

·8· ·but they're the -- also the owners of the company.

·9· · · · A.· It's one and the same.

10· · · · Q.· Okay.· Okay.

11· · · · A.· But no one's allowed to have control.

12· · · · Q.· But you have gone through the list of directors

13· ·and -- unfortunately these pages --

14· · · · A.· Directors?

15· · · · Q.· -- aren't --

16· · · · Well, the owners?· You're looking at it right now.

17· · · · A.· Yeah.· Every owner is considered a dire- --

18· ·It's -- It's not like the United States where it's a

19· ·corporate director.

20· · · · Q.· Okay.· These pages aren't numbered --

21· · · · A.· Nope.

22· · · · Q.· -- but it's identifying all of the individuals

23· ·who are directors.

24· · · · A.· All American.

25· · · · Q.· Okay.· And again, I wish these pages were
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